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Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
For the 6 months period ended 30 June 2019

Directors' report

1 Financial statements

The directors of the Authority present their report on the affairs of Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (‘the Authority’ or “NSIA’), together with the
financial statements of the Authority and the subsidiaries (known as "the Group"} and independent auditor's review report for the period ended June
2019.

2 Principal activities
The Authority was established by the Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (Establishment ete.) Act, 2011 to manage excess funds from the enuntry's
sale of crude oil. This is performed through three (3) funds; Stahilisation Fund (SH), Nigeria Infrastructire Fund (NIF) and the Future Generation Fund
{FGF}, The Authority commenced operations in October 2012.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the Groups's business from the prior period.

3 Operating resulis
The following is a summary of the Group and Authotity's operating results for the period:

Group Authority
30 June 30 June
2019 2019
N'ooo N'ooo
Interest and investment income 16,056,943 16,178,833
Gain on financial assets 6,860,771 8,083,019
Net foreign exchange gain 1,749,724 1,640,322
Investment management and custodian fees (687,582) (687,225)
Impairment write back on financial assets 1,361,983 430,532
Loss from infrastructure subsidiaries investments (1,459,525) B
Other income 1,346,701 9,697
Operating and administrative expenses (2,150,267) (1,610,726)
Interest expense (1,945,208) B
Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method 541,761 -
Profit before taxation 22,575,391 24,045,352
Total comprehensive income for the period 24,042,418 25,731,122

4 Objective
NSIA is an autonomous entity established under the laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria with broad mandates to:

@) enhance the development of Nigerian infrastructure
b) provide stabilisation support in times of economic stress, and
c) carry out such other activities as may be related to the above objects.

5 Governance and management
The Act establishes a Governing Council (the Council) for the Authority. The Council comprises the following:
a) The President of Nigeria (who may be represented by the Vice-President);
b) Governots of Nigeria's 36 States; and
¢} Eighteen other appointees, incleding:
(i) Attorney-General of the Federation;
(i) Minister of Finance;
(iii} Minister in charge of the National Planning Commission.

6 Employee health, safety and environment
The Authority enforces strict health and safety rules and practices in the work envivonment, which are reviewed and tested regulatly. The Authority
provides medical insurance for its employees through designated hospitals and clinics. Tire prevention and fire-fighting equipment are installed at
strategic locations within the Authority’s premises.

‘%L‘-\’Q/kwﬂ\(

Mrs, Ezinwa Okoroafor
General Counsel
FRCN/2016/NBA/00000015045




Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
For the 6 months period ended 30 June 2019

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

In relation to the consolidated and separate financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019;

The Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority Act requires the preparation of quarterly reports of the financial affairs of the
Authority and Group at the end of the period and of its profit or loss, The responsibility includes:

a. ensuring that the Authority and Group keep proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable aceuracy, the
financial position of the Authority and Group and comply with the requirements of the Nigeria Sovereign Investment
Authority Act;

b. designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error: and

¢. preparing the Authority and Group's financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates that are consistently applied.

The directors accept responsibilities for the quarterly consolidated and separate financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Nigeria Sovereign Investment
Authority Act.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the
Authority and Group and of its profit or loss. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of aecounting
records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial
control,

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Authority will not remain a going concern for at least
twelve months from the date of this statement.

Signed on behalf of the board of directors by:

e

( AVE
Mr. Uche Orji Mrs. SL@I?] Ojekive-Onyejeli
Director Director'.
FRC/2014/10DN /000000070736 FRC/2014/ICAN/00000005766
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE NIGERIA SOVEREIGN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated and separate interim statement of financial position
of Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (“the Authority”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
as at 30 June 2019 and the related consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income for
the three-month and six-month periods then ended, and statements of changes in equity and cash flows
for the six-month period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes. The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated and separate interim financial statements in accordance with the International Accounting
Standard 34 “Interim finaneial reporting”. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these
consolidated and separate interim financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
"Review of Interim Financial Information performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.” A review
of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
consolidated and separate interim financial statements do not give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and the Authority as at 30 June 2019, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the six-month period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standard 34 “Interim financial reporting”.

ﬁ'.

3%/ 1 AN »
(efhx M&Uﬁz 0334377 .0
For: PricewaterhouseCoopers 22 January 2020

Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria

Engagement Partner: Tolulope Adeleke
FRC/2014/ICAN/00000008319

PricewaterhouseCoopers Chartered Accouniants, Landmark Towers 5B Water Corporation Road, Victoria Island, Lagos,
Nigeria.



Nigeria Sovereign Investent Authority

Unaudited eonsolidated and separate interim financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income

For the three and six months period ended 30 June 2019

Interest income

Investment income

Interest income on financial asscts at FVTPL
Gain/(loss) on financial assets

Net foreign exchange gain

Total operating income

Investment management fees

Global and local custodian fees

Total investment management and custodian fees
Impairment write back/{charge} on financial assets
Total operating profit

Revenue from infrastructure subsidiaries investments
Expense from infrastructure subsidiaries investments
Loss from infrastructure subsidiaries investments
Other income

Operating and administrative expenscs

Interest expense

Share of profit of investments accounted for using the equity method
Profit hefore taxation

Taxation

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income:

Iteins that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Net change in fair value of financial assets at FVOCT

Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of associates and joint
venture

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the period

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit/(loss} attributable to:
Owners of NSIA
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of NSIA
Non-controlling interest

Group
Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June

2019 2018 2019 2018
Notes N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'oco
9 15,065,641 16,813,840 7,188,657 14,815,575
10 1,387,282 3,263,603 855,613 2,119,886
1 504,020 163,065 263,731 86,275
12 6,860,771 (7173,656) 442,313 (6,:475.149)
13 1,749,729 1,649,915 54,577 66,959
25,567,438 14,716,836 8,804,801 10,613,546

(555,820} (530,721) (314,687) (410,429)

(131,762) (51,002) (92,113) (7,504)
(687,582} (581,723} (406,800) (417,933}

14 1,361,083 (7,081,521) 813,497 (1,081,344)
26,241,839 7:053,592 9,211,588 9,114,269

15 16,520,885 14,159,385 11,860,750 3,383,600
16 (17,980,410} (20,719,146) (12,808,114) (9,843,563)
{1,459,525) (6,559,761) {947,364) (6,459.903)

17 1,346,791 5,204,805 {662,046) 2,100,369
i8 (2,150,267} (1,976,541) (1,414,290) (1,046,600)
19 (1,945,208) (827,203) (1,107,196) (556,488}
25 541,761 154,772 304,349 66,810
22,575,391 3,049,664 5,385,041 3,218,457

(72,693)  (naag2) (23391 (56,440}

22_,502.,698 2,037,432 5,361,650 3,162,017

1,675,647 1,170,084 1,293,335 577,273

26,433 19,197 (2,499) 7,011

(162,360) (3,730,231) (68,063} (1,279,528)

1,539,720 (2,540,950) 1,222,773 (695,244)

24,042,418 396,482 6,584,423 2,466,773

22,502,849 2,038,360 5:361,981 3,162,903

(151} {934) (331) (886}

2z§02,698 2,037,432 jﬁ61,650 2,162,017

24,042,436 398,409 6,584,754 2,467,628

(18) (1,927} (331) {855)

24,042,418 396,982 6,584,423 2,466,773

The accompanying rotes on pages 11 to 71 form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
Statement of comprehensive income

For the three and six months period ended 30 June 2019

Authority
Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018

Notes N'eoo N ‘oao N'ooo N 'o00
Interest incgme 9 15,018,474 16,813,849 7,188,485 14,815,575
Investment income 10 656,339 1,306,101 406,395 455,170
Interest income on financial assets at FVTPL 1 504,020 163,065 263,731 86,275
Gain/({loss) on financial assets 12 8,083,919 (7,436,002) 1,704,947 (6,119,590)
Net foreign exchange gain 13 1,040,322 1,649,482 54,370 66,526
Total operating income 25,003,074 12,496,495 9,617,928 9,303,956
{nvestment management fees {555,820) (457,257) (437,300) {307,988)
Global and local custodian fees (131,405) (51,002} (91,926) (7,504)
Total investment management and custodian fees {687,225) {508,259) (524,226) {375,492)
Impairment write back/(charge) on financial assets 14 430,532 (103,445) 27,732 33,271
Total operating profit 25,646,381 11,884,791 9,116,434 8,061,735
Other income 17 9,697 1,020,387 1,102 1,016,914
Operating and administrative expenses 18 (1,610,726) (1,621,646} (945,206) {796,887}
Profit before taxation i 24,045,352 11,283,532 8,172,330 9,181,762
Taxation - - - -
Profit for the period 24,045,352 11,283,532 8,172,330 9,181,762
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Net change in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI 1,685,770 77,273 1,292,629 1,849,978
Other comprehensive income for the period 1,685,770 577,273 1,292,629 1,849,978
Total comprehensive income for the period 25,731,122 11,860,805 9,464,959 11,031,740

The accompanying notes on pages 11 10 71 form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements,



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
Statement of financial position as at 3o June 2019

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Notes N'ooo N'ooo N'o00 N o000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20 78,138,297 76,154,290 69,415,103 61,777,335
Investment securities 21 488,841,747 461,391,586 461,005,559 441,635,909
Other assets 22 52,786,301 44,185,369 42,706,934 36,082,678
Inventories 23 18,935,112 20,685,075 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 24 - - 5,116,826 5,116,826
Zl;:ﬁfytl:;ntfozomunted ionnsingthie 25 14,216,673 13,647,879 10,614,990 10,614,990
Property and equipment 26 1,765,971 1,617,016 333,997 272,950
Intangible assets 27 42,978 12,893 42,078 12,893
Total assets 654,726,479 617,698,108 589,326,387 555,513,581
Liabilities
Other liabilities 28 62,420,115 48,258,049 26,997,199 18,915,515
Borrowings 29 24,875,519 26,052,673 - -
Total liabilities 87,205,634 74,310,722 26,997,199 18,915,515
Equity
Equity atiributable to equity holders
of parent
Contribution by Government 30.1 280,662,500 280,662,500 280,662,500 280,662,500
Retained earnings 30.2 278,084,192 255,581,343 277,735,848 253,690,496
Fair value reserve 30.3 3,489,608 1,786,620 3,930,840 2,245,070
Foreign currency translation reserve 30.4 5,188,740 5,351,100 - -
567,425,040 543,381,563 562,320,188 536,598,066
Non-controlling interest 30.5 5,805 5,823 - -
567,430,845 543,387,386 562,320,188 536,598,066
Total equity and liabilitics 654,726,479 617,608,108 580,326,387 555,513,581

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 14 November 2019 by:

== >

W
Mr Uche Orji Mrs. Stella 'ekyu::)()nycjeli
Managing Director Director |
FRC/2014/10DN/ 00000007036 FRC/2014/ICAN/00000005766
Additionally certified by:
Mrs Olubisi Makoju™

Financial Controller
FRC/2014/ICAN/GOCGO005765

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 71 form an integral par1 of these consolidated and separate financial statements.



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements

Statement of changes in equity
For the 6 months period ended 30 June zo19

Group
Balance at 1.January 2018

Changes on inilial application of I[FRS ¢

Restated balanice as at 1. January 208

Prafit for the period

Currency translation differences

Net change in fair value of financial assets FVOCT

Share of other comprehensive income of associates

Total other comprehensive income/{loss) for the period
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the pertod
Balance al 30 June 2018

Group 30 June 2019

Gronyp

Balance at 1 Jamiary 2019

Profit/(loss) for the period

Currency tranglation differences

Net change in fair value of financial ascets FVOCE

Share of other comprehensive incame of associates and joint venture
Tots ather comprehensive income/ {loss) for the periad

Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the period

Balance at 30 June zo1¢

Contribution by Foreign currency Fair value Retained Nen-controlling Total
Government translation reserve reserve carnings interest equity
N'ooo N "oog N'ooo N'ooo _ N'voo N 'ooo
280,662,500 6,797,697 43,190,481 170,402,086 4,730 501,057,994
& (41,656,465) 41,656,465
= = 8 (2,011,745} E (2,011,745}
280,662,500 6,767,607 1,534,516 210,046,806 4,730 499,046,245
B : - 2,938,366 (534) 2,937,432
13,728,580} - - (1,651 (3.730,231)
B : 1,169,426 = 658 1,170,089
- - 19,197 - 19,157
L F (3,728.580) 1,188,623 EN (993} (2,540,950)
_— = {3,728,580) 1,188,623 2,938,366 {1,927} 396,482
280,602,500 3,060 117 2,723,130 212,085,172 2,803 499,442,731
Contribulion by Foreign currency Tair value Retained Non-controlling Total
Government translation reserve reserve earnings interest equity
N'aoo N'ooo N 'ooo N ‘aoo N 'ooo N'oog
280,662,500 5,351,100 1,786,620 255,581,343 5823 543,387,386
- 22,502,849 {151) 22,502,648
(162,360) 1,041 {161,319)
1,676,555 (90R) 1,675,647
261423 26,433
(162,360) 1,702,988 - 133 1,540,761
- (162,360) 1,702,988 22,502,849 (8) 24,043,459
280,662@)0 5,188,740 3,489,608 278,084,102 §530§ 567,430,845

The accempanying notes on pages 11 to 71 farm an Integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
Statemnent of changes in equity

For the 6 months period ended 30 June 2019

Contribution Fair value Retained Total
by Government reserve carnings equity
Authorily N ‘oo N'ooo N 'o00 N'ooo
Balance at 1 January 2018 280,662,500 43,497,310 170,859,498 495,019,308
Changes on initial application of IFRS 9 249,095) (249,005)
Reclazsification from fair value ardd corrency reserves as a result ef adoption of TFRS g _ (41,043,623) 41,043,623
Restated balance as at 1 Janwary 2018 _ 280,662,500 2,453,687 211,654,026 494,770,213
Peofit for the perind - 11,283,532 11,283,532
Net change in fair vatue of financial assets at FVOCI - 577,273 - 577,273
Tota) ather comprehensive income for the period — 577,273 N e
Total eomprehensive income for Lhe period B - 11,860,805
Balance at 30 June 2018 i :,ur.,t' ;,mx i
Aulhority 30 June 2015 Contribulion Fair value Retained Tolal
by Government reserve earnings equity
Authority N'oo0 N'ooon N 'ooc N'voo
Balance at 1.January 2019 280,662,500 2,245,070 253,690,496 536,508,066
Profit for the period B - 24,045,352 24,045,352
Net change in fair value of financial assets at FYOCI o 1,685,770

Tatal other comprelensive income for the pericd -
Total ecomprehensive income for the periad -

24,045,352

1,685,770

Balance at 30 June 2019 280,662,500

The accompanying noles on pages 11 to 71 form an inlegral part of these consolidated and separale financial statements.

3,930,840

277,735,848




Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the 6 months period ended 30 June 2019

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 30 June 30June 30 June
2019 2018 2019 20318
_ N ‘coo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Cash flow from operating activities
Profil/(loss) before income lax 22,575,391 3,049,004 24,045,352 11,283,532
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flow from
operating activities:
Depreciation charge for the period 18 81,245 35,611 81,152 19,562
Amortisation of intangible assels 18 - 327 - 63
Interest income {15,065,641) (16,813,849) {15,018,474) (16,813,849)
Investment income (1,387,282} (3,203,663) (656,339} (1,306,101)
Interest income on financial assels al FVTPL (504,020} (163,065) (504,020) (86,275)
Net foreign exchange gains (1,749,724) (1,640,322} -
Gain on dispesal of a subsidiary - (1,606,534) - (1,606,634)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on financial instruments at FVTPL (6,465,492} (4,705,374) (7,688,640} (4,705,374}
S:l:mly from Federal Government of Nigeria on cost diffential on fertilizer _ {2,491.752} B ~
Benefit from below market rate loan {1,326,731) (541,793) = *
Impairment lesses 14 (1,361,983} 7,081,521 (430,532) 103,445
Interest expense 1,945,208 827,203 - -
Share of profii/{loss) from associate and joint venture 25 (541,761) (154,772) - -
Movements in operating assets/ liabilities:
Inventories 23 1,749,063 1,889,595 - -
Other assets 22 (8,596,032) 4,500,426 (6,624,256) 28,704,486
Other liabilities 28 14,162,066 205,021,333 8,081,684 194,354,018
Cash {used in)/genctated from aperations 3,514,307 197,564,778 (354.395) 214,946,873
Tax paid - - = -
Net cash generated from/{used) in operating activities 2,514,307 197,564,778 {354,395) 214,946,873
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 26 {230,200} (715,941) (142,199) {82,808)
Purchase of other intangible assets 27 (30,085} [1,625) (30,085) -
Paymenl for financial assets al fair value (25,554,407) (24,597,039) (16,821,538) (14,734,501)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value 7,817,749 27,450,922 7,817,740 19,963,513
Investments in financial assets held at amortised cost (105,443,534) (36,799,559) (105,443,534) (36,983,803)
Proceeds from sale of financial asscis al amortised cost 120,300,506 40,250,095 120,309,596 28,013,603
Investment and inlerest income received 3,545,789 3,182,651 2,302,174 2,006,639
Disposal of subsidiaries 24 - 1,954,329 E 1,954,329
Investments in joint ventures/associates 25 (1,910,740) " -
_Nel cash generated/(used) in in\_r‘esLing aclivities 414,908 8,862,003 7,002,163 136,88_3
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 29 - 20,000,000 - E
Interest expense (1,045,208) {285,411} -
ﬁiu_l_h _}_;v_nr.nlml from financing activities . ___2@2081_ 19_,714,589 ___ T B :
Net cash movement for the period 1,984,007 226,141,400 7,657,768 215,083,750
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 20 76,154,290 22,934,050 61,777,335 8,545,297
Nel exchange gains/(losses) on eash and cash equivalents - 1,649,915 - 1,649,482
Cash and cash equivalents at period end ol 78,138,207 250,128,334 60,445, 10% 225,278 535
Cash and cash equivalents comprisc:
Cash in hand 20 11 1,043 11 154
Bank balances 20 42,486,404 213,007,192 36,249,569 199,799,130
Placements with finaneial institutions 20 35,651,882 37,030,099 33,165,523 25,479,251
Total eash and cash equivalents 78,138,297 250,128,334 69,415,103 225,278,535

The accompanying notes on pages 1t to 71 form an inlegral part of these consolidated and separale financial statements,



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
For the 6 months period ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

1 General Information
Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (‘NSLA’ or ‘the Authority’) was established to receive, manage and invest the
excess funds from the eountry’s sale of crude oil in a diversified portfolio of medium and long-term investments. The
Authority was setup by the Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority Act, which was signed in May 2011 and was allocated
an initial USD 1 billion in seed capital. The Authority commenced operations in October 2012.

The Authority is domieiled in Nigeria and its registered office address is the Clan Place, 4th floor, Plot 13864, Tigris

Crescent, Maitama, Abuja.

To actualise its mandate, the Authority has established three separate “ring-fenced’ funds. They include Stabilisation
Fund (SF), Future Generations Fund {(FGF) and Nigeria Infrastructure Fund (NIF). The investment activities of the funds

are managed as follows;

Fund

Investment managers

Stabilisation Fund (SF)

UBS Global Asset Management Limited, Smith Graham & Co, Income Research
+ Management

Nigeria Infrastucture Fund (NIF)

In-house Management Team, Fund for Agricultural Finance in Nigeria (FAFIN)

Future Generations Fund (FGF)

Cevian Capital UK LLP, Blue Mountain, JHL Capital Group LLP, Edghaston
Investment Partners, Arbiter Offshore Limited, Somerset, Marathon Asset
Management LLP, Prince Street, Xenon Private Equity, Z Capital Partners,
Helios Investment Partners, Healtheare Royalty

Pariners, AQR Capital Management, Actis Capital, Africa Capital Alliance,
Abraa] Group, Canyon Partners, RWC Partners Limited, Goldman Sachs Asset
Management, Akina AG, Reverence capital, Naya GP Limited.

2 Structure and content

3
3.1

The financial statements comprise:

(a) A statement of financial position at the end of the period;

{b) A statement of comprehensive income for the period;

(c) A statement of changes in equity for the period:

(d) A statement of cash flows for the period;

(e} Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The consolidated and separate financial statements of Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority (NSIA) have been
prepared in accordance with International Finaneial Reporting Standards (IFRS) on Interim financial information (IAS
34), including International Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Finaneial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) applieable to companies reporting under IFRS, Further standards may be issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and may be subject to the interpretations issued by the IFRIC.

Basis of measurement

The finaneial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following;
* Financial assets measured at fair value though other comprehensive ineome (FVOCI)

* Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

* Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

11



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
For the 6 months period ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

3.3 (a) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Naira. All financial information presented in Naira has been rounded to the
nearest thousands, except otherwise indicated. The currency of the primary economie environment of the Authority (that
is, functional currency) is the Nigerian Naira.

Ttems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Group’s presentation cutrency is the
Naira.

(b) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
seltlement of such transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges. Foreign exchange gains and
losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement within “finance
income or costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within ‘net exchange
gains’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the seeurity. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets measured at fair value, such as equities classified as financial assets at FVTOCI, are ineluded in other
comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities {none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

b) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the eumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

¢) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and Jiabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

3-4 Changes in accounting policy
The Group has consistently applied the accounting pelicies as set out in the consolidated financial statements to all
periods presented on the consolidated financial statements.
The Group has adopted the following new standards and amendments including any consequential amendments to other
standards with initial date of application of 1 January 2019,
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Notes to the financial statements

3.5 New Standards, amendments and Interpretations

3-5.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current period
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments
The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in 1AS 12 when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. Specificaily, if it is probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax
treatment, then all tax related items are measured according to the planned tax treatment. If it is not probable that the
tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment, then the tax related items are measured on the basis of
probabilities to reflect the uncertainty. Changes in facts and circumstances are required to be treated as changes in
estimates and applied prospectively.

The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after 1 January, 2019.

The Group is not affected by this amendment as it is exempted from paying all forms of taxes.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17 Leases, and introduces a single lessee accounting model, The
main changes arising from the issue of I[FRS 16 which are likely to impact the Group are as follows:

Company as lessee:

- Lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except short term leases or leases
where the underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight line or other systematic basis.

- The cost of the right-of-use asset includes, where appropriate, the initial amount of the lease liability; lease payments
made prior to commencement of the lease less incentives received; initial direct costs of the lessee; and an estimate for
any provision for dismantling, restoration and removal related to the underlying asset.

- The lease liability takes into consideration, where appropriate, fixed and variable lease payments; residual value
guarantees to be made by the lessee; exercise price of purchase options; and payments of penalties for terminating the

- the right-of-use asset is subsequently measured on the cost model at cost less accumulated Depreciation and
impairment and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, right-of-use assets are measured at fair
value when they meet the definition of investment property and all Other investment property is accounted for on the fair
value model. If a right-of-use asset relates to a elass of property, plant and equipment which is measured on the
revaluation model, then that right-of-use assel may be measured on the revaluation model.

- The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured for reassessments
or modifications.

- Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use assets, unless the assets have been reduced to nil,
in which case further adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.

- The Jease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at a revised rate when there is a change in the lease
term or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

- The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised lease payments at the original discount rate when there is a
change in the amounts expected to be paid in a residual value guarantee or when there is a change in future payments
because of a change in index or rate used to determine those payments.

- Certain lease modifications are accounted for as separate leases. When lease modifications which decrease the scope of
the lease are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the lessee re-measures the lease liability by
decreasing the carrying amount of the right of lease asset to reflect the full or partial termination of the lease. Any gain or
loss relating to the full or partial termination of the lease is recognised in profit or loss. For all other lease modifications
which are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, the lessee re-measures the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

- Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be presented separately from other assets and liabilities. If not, then the
line item in which they are included must be disclosed. This does not apply to right-of-use assets meeting the definition of
investment property which must be presented within investment property. IFRS 16 contains different disclosure
requirements compared to IAS 17 leases.
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Company as lessor;

~ Accounting for leases by lessors remains similar to the provisions of IAS 17 in that leases are classified as either finance
leases or operating leases. Lease classification is reassessed only if there has been a modification.

- A modification is required to be accounted for as a separate lease if it both increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and the increase in consideration is commensurate to the stand alone price of
the increase in scope.

- If a finance lease is modified, and the modification would not qualify as a separate lease, but the lease would have been
an operating lease if the modification was in effect from inception, then the modification is accounted for as a separate
lease. In addition, the carrying amount of the underlying asset shall be measured as the net investment in the lease
immediately before the effective date of the modification. IFRS g is applied to all other modifications not required to be
treated as a separate lease,

- Modifications to operating leases are required to be accounted for as new leases from the effective date of the
maodification. Changes have also been made to the disclosure requirements of leases in the lessor's financial statements,

Sale and leaseback transactions:

- In the event of a sale and leaseback transaction, the requirements of IFRS 15 are applied to consider whether a
performance obligation is satisfied to determine whether the transfer of the asset is accounted for as the sale of an asset,
- If the transfer meets the requirements to be recognised as a sale, the seller-lessee must measure the new right-of- use
asset at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right-of-use retained. The buyer-
lessor accounts for the purchase by applying applicable standards and for the lease by applying IFRS 16,

- If the fair value of consideration for the sale is not equal to the fair value of the asset, then IFRS 16 requires adjustments
to be made to the sale proceeds. When the transfer of the asset is not a sale, then the selier-lessee continues to recognise
the transferred asset and recognises a financial lability equal to the transfer proceeds. The buyer-lessor recognises a
financial asset equal to the transfer proceeds,

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January, 2019.
The Group has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2019 financial statements.

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to IFRS g

The narrow-scope amendments made to IFRS g Financial Instruments in December 2017 enables entities to measure
certain prepayable financial assets with negative compensation at amortised cost. These assets, which include some loan
and debt securities, would otherwise have to be measured at fair value through profit or loss. To qualify for amortised cost
measurement, the negative compensation must be ‘reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract’ and
the asset must be held within a ‘held to collect’ business model. The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
on or after 1 January, 2019.

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — Amendments to IAS 28

The amendments clarify the accounting for long-term interests in an associate or Jjoint venture, which in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, but to which equity accounting is not applied. Entities must
account for such interests under IFRS g Financial Instruments before applying the loss allocation and impairment
requirements in IFRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, The effective date of the standard is for years
beginning on or after 1 January, 2019,
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3.5.2

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

The following improvements were finalised in December 2017: -IFRS 3 - clarified that obtaining control of a business that
is a joint operation is a business combination achieved in stages. - IFRS 11 - clarified that the party obtaining joint eontrol
of a business that is a joint operation shoutd not remeasure its previously held interest in the joint operation. - TAS 12 -
clarified that the income tax consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified as equity should be recognised
according to where the past transactions or events that generated distributable profits were recognised. -IAS 23 - clarified
that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale, it
becomes part of general borrowings. The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January, 20i9.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — Amendments to IAS 19

The amendments to IAS 1g clarify the accounting for defined benefit plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.
They confirm that entities must : - caleulate the current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement by using the updated assumptions from the date of the change -
any reduction in a surplus should be recegnised immediately in profit or loss either as part of past service cost, or as a
gain or loss on settlement. In other words, a reduction in a surplus must be recognised in profit or loss even if that

surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling - separately recognise any changes in the
asset ceiling through other comprehensive income. The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1
January, 2019.

Standards and interpretations not yet effective

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts

The IFRS establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
issued,

The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those
contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts
have on the entity's financial position, finaneial performance and cash flows.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January, 2021.

The Group expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2021 financial staternents. The impact of this standard is
currently being assessed.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 January, 2021,

The Group expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2021 financial statements, The impact of this standard is
currently being assessed.

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or Joint venture — Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

The IASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements and IAS 28 Investments in
associates and joint ventures. The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment depends on whether
the nonmonetary assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture constitute a ‘business’ {as defined in IFRS 3
Business Combinations). Where the non-maonetary assets constitute a business, the investor will recognise the full gain or
loss on the sale or contribution of assets. If the assets do not meet the definition of a business, the gain or loss is
recognised by the investor only to the extent of the other investor’'s investors in the associate or Joint venture, The
amendments apply prospectively. The IASB decided to defer the application date of this amendment until such time as
the IASB has finalised its research project on the equity method.
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4 Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below were adopted by the Group in the presentation of these financial statements.
4.1 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has contrel. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to

affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully eonsolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsclidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method te account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date,
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

(b) Change in ownership interest subsidiaries without loss of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The differenee between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to noncontrolling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c¢) Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control over any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
agset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounis
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(d) Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has signifieant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition,

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate
is impaired, If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of assaciates’
in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream iransactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Aceounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group. Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in the income statement,
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(e) Joint arrangements
i) Joint operations
An entity that has an investment in joint operations recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses of joint operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and eXpenses,

ii) Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accaunted for using the equity method at the Group financial statements level (see ()
below), after initially being recognised at cost in the separate financial statements.

The Authority has investments in only joint ventures, there were no investments in joint operations as at the end of the
period.

(f) Equity method
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income, Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recoghised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Authority,

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equily account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or
signifieant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initia! carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in cther comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Tf the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss where appropriate,
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4.2 Interest income and interest expense
Interest income and expense on financial assets are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the
financial asset or liability.

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss disclosed seperately in the statement of
comprehensive income as "interest income on instruments measured at FVTPL".

4.3 Investment income
Investment income consists of dividends and income earned on the Group's equity, fund investments and fixed income
products.

4.4 Transaction costs

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. They include fees and commissions paid to agents, custodians and advisers.

4.5 Net gain from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes all realised and unrealised fair value
changes and foreign exchange differences, but excludes interest and dividend income, and dividend expense on short
positions.

4.6 Income tax expense
The NSIA Act exempts the Authority from the provisions of any and all taxes, fees, imports or similar fiscal laws or
regulations of the Federal Government, State Government, Federal Capital Territory, Local Government and Area
councils of the Federal Republic of Nigeria. The Authority is however mandated to pay tax on behalf of its employees and
suppliers.

Dividend and interest income received hy the Authority may be subject to withholding tax imposed in the country of
origin. Thus the investment income accruing to the Authority is gross of such taxes and the related withholding tax
expense is treated as an expense in the income statement.

Subsidiaries and other affliates in Nigeria that are wholly owned subsidiaries incorporated outside Nigeria are subjected
to taxes based on the territories of operations and this is shown in the Group.

4.7 Financial assets and financial liabilities

4.7.1 Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognizes cash and bank balances, money market placements, investment securities, other financial
assets, Other liabilities and borrowings on the date on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPLY), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acguisition or issue.
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4.7.2 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
(i) Business model assessment
The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because
this best reflects the way the business is managed and informatien is provided to management. The information
considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolic and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular, whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Authority’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business maodel)
and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future
sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall
assessment of how the Group’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realized.

(ii) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

In this case, ‘principal’is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition, In making the
assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of eash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements); and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money - e.g. periodical reset of interest rates,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and Josses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in

equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Grourp has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, or fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial instruments are measured either at fair value or amortised cost, depending
on their elassification.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in interest income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contraciual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI, Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCT, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in other ineome. Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in nt foreign exchange gains and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYOCI are
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other income in the period in whieh it arises,

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other income in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
All financial assets other than those measured as deseribed above are measured at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities
The Authority classifies its financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

4.7.3 Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Authority neither transfers nor retains substantiaily all the risks and
rewards of ownership and does nat retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Authority is recognised as a separate asset or liability in the
statement of financial position. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised), and the consideration received
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual ebligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

4.7.4 Amortised cost measurement
The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the finaneial asset or liability is measured at
initial recognition, minus prineipal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for
impairment.
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4.7.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that will be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
When available, the Authority measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the
Authority establishes fair value using a valuation technique, Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length
transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses and option pricing models.

The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates specific to
the Authority, incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with
accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent
market expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Authority
calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for validity using prices from observable current market transactions in
the same instrument or based on other available observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price — i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial
recognition may be different from its transaction price. If such fair value is evidenced by comparison with other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument (without modification or repackaging) or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases the difference is not recognised in profit or loss
immediately but is recognised over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is
redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

Subsequent to injtial recognition, the fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market prices or dealer
price quotations for financial instruments traded in active markets. If the market for a financial asset is not active or the
instrument is unlisted, the fair value is determined by using applicable valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analyses, pricing models and valuation techniques commaonly used
by market participants.

Where discounted cash flow analyses are used, estimated cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the
discount rate is a market-related rate at the reporting date from a financial asset with similar terms and conditions.
Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on observable market indicators at the reporting date and profits or
losses are only recognised to the extent that they relate to changes in factors that market participants will consider in
setting a price.

4.7.6 Determination of fuir values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both finaneial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and or disclosure purposes
based on the foltowing methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specifie to that asset or liability.

4.7.7 Investment in equity and debt securities
The fair value of equity and debt securities is determined by reference to their quoted closing bid price at the reporting
date. The fair value of financial assets measured at amortised cost is determined for diselosure purposes only and are
determined by reference to the quoted closing bid price at the reporting date.
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4.7.8

4.7-9

4.7.10

4.7.11

4742

4.8

4.9
4.9.1

Investment in private equity funds

The fair value of the investments held in one of the Group’s subsidiaries are recognised at fair value determined using the
net asset valuation method. This is dene by obtaining

i, the valuation of the Investee Fund's underlying investments;

ii. the value date of the net asset value {(NAY) provided:;

iii. cash flows (calls/distributions) since the latest value date; and

iv. the basis of accounting and, in instances where the basis of accounting is other than fair value, fair valuation
information provided by the Investee Fund’s General Partner.

Investment in fixed income products

The Group has classified some investments as fixed-income security during the period. Fixed income securities are debt
securities which pays a fixed amount of interest in the form of coupon payments to investors. The interest payments are
typically made periodieally while the principal invested in repaid to the investor at maturity. Income is recognised on this
investment when the interest payments are made.

Receivables

The fair value of short term receivables is measured at its carrying amount,
Impairment of financial assets

See credit risk disclosures for details on impairment of financial assets

Impairment of non-financial asseis

The carrying amounts of the Authority’s non-financial assets other than investment property and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indieation
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset Group that generates cash flows, which are largely
independent from other assets and Groups. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss, Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the earrying amount of the other assets in the unit (Group of uniis) on a
pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks speeific to the asset.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amaount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise fixed deposits with banks, and highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of less than three months from the acquisition date, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their
fair value, and are used by the Authority in the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

Property and equipment
Initial recognition
All items of property and eguipment are initially recognised at cost. Cost includes the value of consideration exchanged,

or fair value in the case of donated or subsidised assets, and those costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of equipment.

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
{major components) of property and equipment.
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4.9.2

4.9.3

4.9-4

4.10

4.13

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Authority and its cost can be measured reliably. The
canying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of
property and equipment since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the futurc economic benefits
embodied in the assel. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorier of the lease term and their useful lives. Depreciation begins
when an asset is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is derecognised or classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows:

Assets Annual depreciation rate
Furniture and fittings 5 ycars

Mator vehicles 4 years

Computer equipment 3.3 years

Office equipment 4 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Derecognition

An item of property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the assct) is included in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets - software

Software acquired by the Authority is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Software
is recognized if it is probable that the expected future cconomic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity;
and the cost of the software can be measured reliably. Expenditure that forms part of the cost of software that meets the
recognition criteria are capitalized as part of the software. Software is accounted for using the cost model. After initial
recognition, the software is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any aceumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic henefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 3 years, from the date that it is available for use. The amortisation method and
useful life of software are reassessed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

TFrade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. If collection is expected in one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Inventory

Tnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventaries includes expenditures ineurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs. In the case of manufactured inventory and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal aetivity level,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business. Accounts payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as noncurrent liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4-14 Contingencies

G144

4.14.2

Contingent assets

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the controf of the entity.

A contingent asset is disclosed when an inflow of economic benefit is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related asset is not a contingent and its recognition is appropriate,

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

Contingent Habilities

Contingent Tiability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fiture events net wholly within the control of the entity; or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an ocutflow of resources embodying
ceconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Contingent lability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote. A
provision for the part of the obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable is recognised,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made. Contingent liabilities are assessed continually
to determine whether an outflow of economic benefit has become probable,

4.15 Employee benefits

4.15.1

4.15.2

Post employment benefits

Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributons to defined contribution plans arc recognised as an expense in profit or loss when they are due.

Pension Scheme

The Authority operates a funded defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for its employees under the provisions of the
Pension Reform Act 2014. The employee and the employer contributions are 8% and 10% respectively each of the qualifying
employee’s salary.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans is recognised as an employec benefit expense in profit or loss in the
period when the employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that is due more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the ecmployees
render the service are discounted to their present value at the reporting date,

Short term bengfits

Short-term employee benefit ohligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.,

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Authority

has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

4.16 Revenue

Revenue is defined as income arising in the course of an entity's ordinary activities.

Revenue is recognised when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a prosmised good or service (i.e. an
asset) to the customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group determines whether a performance obligation is satisfied (and revenee is recognised} over time, or whether a
performance obligation is satisfied (and revenue is recognised) at a point in time for ail contracts. All revenue derived by the entity
(NS1A) arc recognised at a point in time because it has met all indicators of transfer of control which should be considered. This
includes the following;

= The Group has a present right to payment for the asset

+ The legal title of the asset has been transferred to the customer

+ The customer has taken physical possession of the asset

+ The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the assct and:
» The customer has accepted the asset

24



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
For the 6 months period ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

Revenue (Cont'd)

The Group recognizes revenue from the following sources:
= Sales of NPK fertilizers

« Interest/ investment income

Inorder to meet the core prineiple of recognising revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 1o customers in an
amount that reflects the amount of consideration to which an entity expeets to be entitled in exchange for those goads or services, a
five-step model is adopted; this five steps are:

a Identify the contract with the customer
b Identify the distinct goods or services

¢ Determine the transaction price

d Allocate the transaction price

e Determine when to recognise revenue

Sale of NPK fertilizers
For sales of NPK fertilizers, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has transferved, bein g when the goods have been made
available for pick up at the blenders premises. Agro-dealers and state governments are the only customers under this sale,

There are no provision to deliver the fertilizers to the customers. A reccivable is recognised by the Group when the goods have been
made available for pick up by the agro-dealers and state government, as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional based on the contract of sale the company has with its customers, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is duc. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with credit terms of 90 days which
is consistent with market practice.

There are no retwrn policies and warranties granted to customers under the contract. The goods are sold dircetly to customers, there
is no form of intermediary.

The NPK fertilizers are sold on price concessions based on amonnts agreed with the Federal Government of Nigeria. Reventte from
these sales is recognised based en the price specified in the contract with the customers (agro dealers and state governments). Where
the agreed price leads to a loss positien for the company, the federal government reimburses the entity for selling below cost price.

4.17 Below market borrowings (Government grants)
The Group, through its subsidiary, NAIC-NPK Limited benefits from the Central Bank of Nigeria's Real Sector Support
Facility(RSSI) Scheme where the Federal Government of Nigeria/Central Bank of Nigeria through some commereial hanks
provide finance to companies in certain industries at subsidised interest rates. Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

4.18 Capital and other commitments
The term ‘commitments’ is not defined in any of the standards but may be referred to as the intention to commit to an outflow
from the Group of resources embodying economic benefits.
Generally, 2 commitment arises when a decision is made to incur a lability in the form of a purchase contract {or similar
documentation). Such a contractual commitment would be accompanied by, but not limited to, actions taken to determine the
amount of the eventual resource outflow or a reliable estimate e.g. a quote, and conditions to be satisfied 1o establish an
obligation e.g. delivery schedules.

These preconditions ensure that the information relating to commitments is relevant and capable of reliable measurement. The
Group may enter into a contract on or before the reporting date for expenditure over subsequent accounting periods e.g. a
contract for construction of infrastructure assets, the purchase of major items of plant and equipment or significant consultancy
contracts. In these events, a commitment exists at the reporting date as the Group has contracted for expenditure but work has not
commenced and no payments have been made.

4.19 Comparatives
Comparative figures where necessary, have been reclassified to conform to changes in classifications in the evrrent accounting
period.

4.20 Intercompany receivables
Intercompany receivables represent balances due from the Authority's subsidiaries as at the end of the financial period. The balance
on the financial statements represents the carrying amount as at the end of the period.
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5

5.1

5.1.2

513

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and Jiabilities, incomes and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that ave not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised, and in any future periods affected. Managetment discusses with the Board of
Directors the development, selection and disclosure of the Authority’s critical accounting policies and estimates, and the
application of these policies and estimates. These disclosures supplement the commentary on financial risk management.

Critical accounting judgmenis in applying the Authority's accounting policies
Critical accounting judgements made in applying the Authority's accounting policies include;

Valuation of financial instruments

The Authority’s accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed under Note 4. The fair values of quoted financial assets
at fair value through OCI and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are determined by reference to prices quoted in
an active market. For financial assets at fair value through OCI equity investments which are unguoted, the Authority performs a
fair valuation exercisc on these investments using available and applicable inputs to determine their fair valucs.

The fair values of the private equity investments held by one of the Group’s subsidiaries has been determined at the reporting date
using the net asset valuation method. This takes into account the net asset values as obtained from the different private equity
investee funds’ most recent available financial information, considering contributions and distributions between the last net asset
valuation date and the reporting period. These private equity investments are unquoted and comparable market information was
notavailable as at the end of the reporting period. Determining the fair values based on this valuation approach assumes that the
investment will be realised at the reporting date at thesc values. The sensitivity of the fair values to changes in the assumptions
made is disclosed in Note 6.2.g.

The Authority mcasures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the nature and process used in making the
measurements:

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either diveetly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.c., derived from prices).
This category includes instruments valued using: quated market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valpation techniques where all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data, This category includes all instruments
where the valuation technique includes inpuis not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs could have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This categery includes instruments that are valued based on quoled prices for similar
instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences hetween the
instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities classification

The Authority’s accounting policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated on ineeption into different accounting
categories in certain circumstanees: Details of the Authority’s classification of financial assets and liabilities are given in Note 4.7.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS g requires the use of more forward looking information including reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic
conditions. The Group has developed the capability to model a munber of economic scenarios and capture the impact on credit
losses to ensure the overall ECIL. represents a reasonable distribution of economic outcomes. Appropriate governance and
oversight has been established around the process.

Fair value of private equity investments

The fair values of the private equity investments held by one of the Group’s subsidiaries has been determined at the reporting date
using the net asset valuation method. This takes into account the net asset values as obtained from the different private equity
investee funds’ most recent available financial information, considering contributions and distributions between the last net asset
valuation date and the reporting period. These private equity investments are unguoted and comparable market information was
not available as at the end of the reporting period. Determining the fair values based on this valuation approach assumes that the
investment will be realised at the reporting date at these values, The sensitivity of the fair values to changes in the assumptions
made is disclosed in Note 6.2.9.
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6 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk {ineluding carrency risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

6.1 Approach to risk management
With a global cutlook, the Group’s strategy for managing risks is to understand risk within the invested universe and the
externalities that can affect this, with the alm of monitoring, controlling and mitigating against undesired events.
The Group has adopled, wherever possible, recommended best practice in the identification, evaluation and cost effective control
of risks to ensure, as far as possible, that they are eliminated or reduced to a level that is acceptable to the Authority. The Group’s
Risk Framework seeks to explain the Authority’s underlying approach to risk management, documents the roles and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors, Risk Management department and other key parties. It also outlines key aspects of the
risk management process, and identifies the main reporting procedures.

6.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has
entered into with the Group, resulting in a financial loss to the Group. It arises principally froin debt securities held, trade
receivables and advances, and also from cash and cash equivalents.

6.2.1 Management of credit risk

The Group’s policy over credit risk is to minimise its exposure to connterpartics with perceived higher risk of default by dealing
only with counterparties meeting credit standards, hence the Group only deals with counterparties that mect set credit ratings.

6.2.2 Exposure to credit risk
Credit quality of financial assets,
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure per eredit rating.

As at 30 June 2019, all financial assets were neither past due nor impaired. The eredit quality of these financial assets are
disclosed in the following table:

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
(i) Bank balances N'ooo N'oo0 N 'ooo N 'ooo
Counterparties with external credit ratings
AA (Fitch) 5,933,186 - 2,360,759 -
A- (S&P) - 16,113,902 - 1,736,047
B (S&P) 36,553,218 575 33,888,810 575
B2 (Moody) - 27,704,206 - 27,794,206
Total cash at bank balances 42,486,404 43,908,683 36,249,569 20,531,728
(i) Money market placements
Counter parties with external credit ratings
AA(Fitch) 25,898,957 - 23,412,508 -
B (S&P) 9,752,925 - 9,752,925 o
B+ (Fitch) - 32,245,474 - 32,245,474
Total money market placements 35,051,882 32,245,474 33,165,523 32,245,474
(iii) Other assets
Counter parties with external credit ratings
A-2(S&P) 974,035 5,922,236 974,035 1,045,784
B (8&P) 106,966 - 100,966 -
Bz (Moody) 20,377 20,377 20,377 20,377
1,095,378 5,942,613 1,095,378 1,066,161
Counter parties without external credit
ratings
Other receivahles 7,707,005 8,976,731 3,475,006 227,499
Account receivables 27,618,311 4,548,081 2,103,307 4,334,246
Intercompany receivables - - 35.865,4206 30,346,432
Total other assets (Financial assets) 36,421,294 19,467,425 42,539,207 35,974,338
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Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 'o00
(iv) Investment securities
Counter parties with external credit ratings
Financial assets af amortised cost
A+ (S&P) - 16,603,012 - 16,603,012
B (S&P) 205,508,767 30,239,146 200,405,059 30,239,140
B2 (Moody) 28,612,723 182,472,004 28,612,723 182,472,004
A1+ (Fiteh) - 3,270,312 - 3,270,312
A- (GCR) 11,792,561 3.394,422 11,792,561 3:394,422
A (Moody) E 6,710,465 - 6,719,465
B- (Fitch) 11,008,466 - 11,008,466 i
B (Fitch) - 28,732,784 - 28,732,784
B+ (Fitch) 8,286,010 6,217,503 8,286,010 6,217,504
CCC (Fitch) - 4,043,460 - 4,043,465
BAAt (Moody) 8,357,977 - 8,357,977 =
Bz (Moody) - 4,109,896 - 4,109,896
B- (S&P) 22 270,868 - 22,270,868 -
295,837,372 285,802,010 200,733,664 285,802,010
Counter parties without external credit
ratings
Financial assets at amortised cost 1,641,035 1,641,036 - -
};f:,’-ufj:,‘;’:;?;,;ﬁ:,‘:.ﬁ;‘,g'" il 297,478,407 287,443,046 290,733,664 285,802,010
Financial assets at FYOCT
Counter parties with external credit ratings
A1+ (GCR) 4,160,721 - 4,160,721 -
4,160,721 - 4,160,721 -
Counter parties without external credit
ratings
Financial assets at F'VOCI 1,849,000 9:474,482 523,000 7,934,647
Total financial assets at FVOCI 6,009,721 9,474,482 4,683,721 7.934,647
Financial assets at FVTPL
Counter parties with external credit ratings
AAA (Moody) 57,264,047 33,327,803 57,264,047 33,327,803
B (Fitch) 3,366,936 - 3,366,936 -
Baa3 {(Moody) - 1,626,000 - 1,626,000
Counter parties without external eredit
ratings
Financial Assets at FV through profit and loss 124,913,477 130,141,210 105,186,119 113,515,375
Total financial assets at FVTPL 185,544,460 165,095,013 165,817,102 148,469,178
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6.,2.3 Concentration of risk of financial assets.
Geographical sectors
The following table breaks down the Group's risk exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by geographical region as as 30 June 2019
and 31 December 2018. For this table, the Group has allocated exposures to regions based on the country of domicile of its counterparties.
30 June 2019

In thousands of Nigerian Naira Group
Nigeria Restof Lurope Middle Asia America Total
Africa Fast

Cash and cash equivalents
Money market placements 35,651,882 - - - - - 35,051,882
Bank balances 36,520,566 B - - 5,965,838 42,486,404
Other assets
Other receivables 7,808,571 - - - - - 7,808,571
Account receivables 28,612,723 - - - - 28,612,723
Cost incurred on behalf of related party .
Investment securities
At amortised cost -
Eurcbonds - - - - - - -
Nigerian treasury bills 9,404,938 - - - - - 9,404,938
Open market operations hills (MO hills) 187,520,541 - - - - - 187,520,541
Fixed deposits 98,902,803 - - - - 98,902,893
Loans and receivables 1,641,035 - - - 1,641,035
At FVTPL - - -
US treasury notes = = - - 27,485,814 27,485,814
Fixed income products - - - - - 20,778,233 20,778,233

406,072,149 - - - - 63,229,885 469,302,034
31 December 2018
In thousands of Nigerian Naira Group

Nigeria Restof Europe Middle Asia America Total
Africa East

Cash and cash equivalents
Money market placements 32,245,474 - - - - - 32,245,474
Bank balances 26,591,728 - - - 14,376,055 435,908,683
Other assets
Other receivables 11,134,143 - - - - 11,134,143
Account receivables 8,433,282 - - - - - 8,333,282
Cost incurred on behalf of related party 16,113,745 - N B - - 16,113,745
Investment securities
At amortized cost
Eurobonds 10,200,970 - - - - - 10,250,970
Nigerian Treasury bill 3,984,976 - - - - - 3,984,976
Open market operations bills (OMO bills) 178,487,028 - - - - - 178,487,028
Fixed deposits 93,009,036 - - - - - 93,000,036
Loans and receivables 1,641,036 - - - - - 1,641,036
At FVTFPL
US treasury notes - - - - - 26,841,410 26,841,410
Fixed income products - - - - 22,063,236 22,063,236

384,801,418 - - - - 64,181,601 448,983,019
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30 June 2019

In thousands of Nigerian Naire Authority
Nigeria Restof PEurope Middle Asia America Total
Africa Last

Cash and cash equivalents
Money market placements 33,165,523 - - - - - 33,165,523
Bank balances 33,880,609 - B - 2,359,870 36,249,509
Other assets
Other receivables 3,576,062 - - - - - 3,576,062
Account receivables 3,097,719 - - - - - 3,097,719
Investment securities
At amortised cost
Eurchonds - - - - - - -
Nigerian treasury bills 4,301,230 - - - - - 4,301,230
Open market operations bills (OMO bilts) 187,529,541 - - - 187,529,541
Fixed deposits 98,002,893 - - - - 98,902,893
At FVTPL
US treasury notes - - - - - 27,485,814 27,485,814
Fixted income products - - - N - 29,778,233 29,778,233

364,462,667 - - - - 59,623,917 424,086,584
31 December 2018
In thousands of Nigerian Naira Authority

Nigeria Restof Eurape Middle Asia America Total
Africa East

Cash and cash equivalents
Money market placements 12,245,474 - - - - - 32,245,474
Bank halances 249,531,728 - - - - - 29,531,728
Other assets - - - = -
Other reeeivables 2,171,076 - - - - - 2,171,076
Investment securities - - - - - - -
At arnortized cost
Furobonds 10,260,070 - - - - - 10,260,070
Nigerian Treasury bill 3,984,976 - - - - 3,084,976
Open market operations Hills (OMO bills) 178,487,028 - - - 178,487,028
Fixed deposits 93,069,030 - - - - - 93,004,036
At FYTPL
US treasary notes - - - - = 24,805,655 24,805,655
Fixed income products - - - - 22,963,236 22,063,236

349,750,288 : - - - 47,768,891 397,519,179
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6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.5.1

b.2.5.2

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodelogy applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applics the simplified approach permitted by IFRS ¢, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The Aunthority recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:

- financial assets that are debt instruments;

- other assets and receivables; and

- financial gurantee contracts issued

No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.

The Authority measures loss allowances at an amount egual to lifetime ECL, except for the following which they are measured as
12-month ECL:

- debt investment securities that are detetmined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other financial instruments (other than other receivables) on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for other assets and reccivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,

The Authority considers a debt security 1o have low credit risk when their credit risk ratin g is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of ‘investment grade’ or it is a sovereign debt issued in the local currency e.g Trcasury bills and Bonds
issued by the Nigerian Government.

12-month ECL is the portion of ECL that results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date. Life time ECL are credit losses that result from all possible default event over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

Credit risk measurement

The estimation of ercdit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of models, as the exposure
varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assessmont of credit risk of a
portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood of defaults oceurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default
correlations between counterparties. The Group measures credit risk using Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default
(EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the approach used for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) under IFRS 9, Refer to note 6.2.5.2 on measurement of ECL below for more details.

Credit risk grading

The Group uses credit risk gradings that reflect its assessment of the probability of default of individual counterparties. The
Group uses rating modcls tailored to the various categories of counterparty. Specific information collected at the Hime of
acquiring the financial assets (such as disposable income, and level of collateral for exposures; and turnover and industry type)
is fed into this rating model. This is supplemented with external data such as credit burean seoring information on individual
borrowers. In addition, the models enable expert judgement from the risk management unit to be fed into the final internal
credit rating for exposures. This allows for considerations which may not be captured as part of the other data inputs into the
model.

The credit grades are calibrated such that the risk of default increases exponentially at each higher risk grade. For example, this
means that the difference in the PD between an A and A- rating grade is lower than the difference in the PD between a B and B-
rating grade.

Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:
- Finaneial assets that are not eredit-impaired at the reporting date:

They are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (ie. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Authority expects to receive);
- Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date:
They are measured as the difference between the gross earrving amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;
and
- Financial guarantee contracts: They are measured as the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the
Authority expects to recover from the holder, the debtor or any other party.
Default definiton
Under IFRS g, the Group will consider a financial asset to be in default when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realizing security (if any is held); or
- the borrower is more than 9o days past due on any material credit obligation to the Group.
- Overdrafts are considered past due once the customer has breached an advised limit or been advised of a limit that is smaller
than the current amount outstanding,
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6.2.6

6.2.6.1

Measurement of ECL (Cont'd)

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group will consider indicators that are:
- qualitative: e.g. breach of covenants that are deemed as default events;
- quantitative: e.g. 90 days overdue status and non-payment of another obligation of the same issuer to the Authority; and
- based on internally and cxternal objective evidence of impairment,

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over time to reflect

changes in circumstances.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Gronp has established a framework that considers qualitative, quantitative, and ‘backstop’ (30 days past due presumption)
indicators to determine whether the credit risk on a particular financial instrument has ncreased significantly since initial
recognition. The framework aligns with the Group’s internal eredit risk management process.

The eriteria for determining whether eredit risk has increased significantly will vary by portfolio and will include backstop based

on delinquency.

In determining whether the credit risk (i.e. risk of default} on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group will consider reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undie cost
or effort, including both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Authority's historical experience,
expert credit assessment and forward-looking information.
The Authority will primarily assess whether a significant inercase in credit risk has oceurred for an exposure in line with its

staging criteria by comparing;

- the risk of default on the exposure as at the reporting date; with

- the risk of default on the exposure as at the date of initial recognition
Assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition of a financial instrument requires identifying
the date of initial recognition of the instrument. Modifying the contractual terms of a financial instrument may also affect this

assessment.

Details of the qualitative and quantitative factors used to determine the significant increase in credit risk are highlighted in the

next sub-head.

Quantitative Criteria

The use of quantitative criteria requires the Authority to refresh its quantitative metrics at least annually. The Anthority adopted
the following quantitative criteria for the purpose of assessing Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR), vis-a-vis stage

allocation:
i. External Rating Paramecter:

The Authority monitors chatges in external ratings of obligors to assess significant increase/decrease in credit risk. Evidence of
Signifieant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) depends on rating at initial recognition and the extent of movement (number of
notches downgrade/upgrade) as at reporting date.
The Authority applies different notches movement across each rating grade as evidence of SICR, Generally, obligors with higher
credit rating would require more notches downgrade to evidence SICR, when compared with obligors with lower credit rating,
The logic is that PD exponentially increases with movement down the rating grades. For instance, while a one-notch movement
is deemed significant for a financial instrument rated CCC at origination, a three-notch movement is deemed significant for an

AAA rated financial instrument.

Below is a table of the quantitative criteria nsed in allocating stages to the financial instruments of the Authority:

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

« Less than three (3} notches
downgrade in the external rating of the
obligor for financial instruments that
were rated S&P equivalent of AAA to
AA-at origination.

* Less than two (2) notches downgrade
in the external rating of the obligor for
financiai instruments that were rated
S&P equivalent of A+ to BB- at
origination,

+ No downgrade in the external rating
of the obligor for financial instruments
that were rated S&P equivalent of B+
and below at origination.

+ More than three (3) notches downgrade in
the external rating of the obligor for
financial instruments that were rated S&P
equivalent of AAA 1o AA- at origination.

* More than two (2) notches downgrade in
the external rating of the obligor for
financial instruments that were rated S&P
equivalent of A+ to BB- at origination,

« One (1) or more notch downgrade in the
external rating of the obligor for financial
instruments that were rated S&P equivalent
of B+ and below at origination,

» All facilities with a rating of D are
grouped in stape 3
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6.2.6.2

ii. Backstop:

The Authority uses the backstop indicator otherwise known as “30 days past due presumption” to assess significant

decreasefincrease in credit risk. Evidenee of SICR depends on the financial instmment’s performance status and the number of
days for which contractual payments are past due.
The thresholds for these quantitative criteria will be reviewed by the Authority on an annual hasis.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

« The financial instrument is
performing with less than 30 days past
due on any contractaal payment.

» The financial instrument is performing
with 30 or more days but less than go days
past due on any contractual payment;

« The financial instrument is go or more
days past due on contractual payments;
except if the Authority can rebut that the

except if the Authority can rebut that the “g0 days past due” presumption does not

“30 days past due” presumption does not
represent significant increase in credit risk
for that particular financial instrument.

represent a default event for that
particular financial instrument,

Qualitative Criteria

The Authority uses a wide range of qualitative criteria for staging purposes, leveraging on IFRS g recommendations and a range

of other factors.

The Authority shall override the stage allocation using quantitative assessment if the financial instrument meets the qualitative

criteria for a different impairment stage

as detailed below.

Below is a table of the qualitative criteria used in allocating stages to the financial instruments of the Group:

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

» The financial instirument meets CBN
low risk exception criteria i.e. “risk free
and gilt edged”

+ All financial instruments at inception
will be in stage 1 except if purchased or
originated as eredit impaired.

» The financial instrument has not had
a significant increase in credit risk
since origination as evidenced by (but
not limited to) the following factors:

+ An actual or expected change in the
regulatory, macrocconomic, or
technological environment of the
borrower at the reporting date does not
result in a significant change in the
borrower's ability to meet its
obligations relative to the origination
date,

= No expectation of forbearance or
restructuring due to financial
difficulties.

+ No evidence that full repayment of
interest and principal will require the
realization of collaterals or other form
of support.

+ The financial instrument has had a
significant inerease in credit risk since
origination as evidenced by (but not limited
to) the following factors:

« An actual or expected change in the
regulatory, macroeconomic, or technological
environment of the borrower at the
reporting date results in a significant change
in the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations relative to the grigination date,

+ Expectation of forbearance or
restructuring due to financial difficulties.

+ Evidence that full repayment of interest
and principal will require the realization of
collaterals or other form of support.

+ The borrower has suffered a regulatory
fine that is significant in relation to its
size/profit at the reporting date which could
result in a significant change in the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations
relative to the origination date.

« Litigation against the obligor is likely to
have material impact on revenue or profit at
the reporting date which could result in a
significant change in the borrower's ability
to meet its obligations relative to the
grigination date.

s Finaneial instruments that are
purchased or criginated as credit
impaired.

« The financial instrument has objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting
date as evidenced by (but not limited to}
the following:

» Withdrawal of operating license from the
obligor.

+ Voluntary liquidation/insolvency of the
obligor.

» Ifit becomes probable that the obligor
may enter hankruptey or other financiat
reorganization,

+ Disappearance of an active market for
the financial instrument because of
financial difficulties.

» The purchase o1 origination of 3
finaneial instrument at a deep discount
that reflects the incurred credit losses

» Breach of covenants that are deemed as
default events,

+ Other qualitative factors representing
default such as in the CBN’s prudential
guideline definition of default.
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Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

+The borrower did not suffer a
regitlatory fine that is significant in
relation to its size/profit at the
reporting date which could result in a
significant change in the borrower's
ability to meet its obligations relative
to the origination date.

« No Litigation against the obligor that
islikely to have material impact on
profit at the reporting date which could
result in a significant change in the
borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations relative to the origination
date,

+ Government policies have little or no
negative impact on the viability or
profitability of the obligor at the
reporting date which could result in a
significant change in the borrower's
ability to meet its obligations relative
to the originafion date.

* No significant downtorn in the
obligor’s industry at the reporting date
relative to the origination date or the
dewnturn is not expected to
significantly impact the obligor's
ability to meet contractual obligations
relative to the origination date.

+ There is no significant drop in the
obligor's revenue or profitability at the
reporting date which could result ina
significant change in the borrower’s
ability to meet its obligations relative

+ Government policies have significant
negative impact on the viability or
profitability of the obligor at the reporting
date which could result in a significant
change in the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations relative to the origination date.

= Significant downturn in the obligor's
industry at the reporting date relative to the
origination date or the downturn is expected
to significantly impact the obligor's ability
to meet contractual obligations relative to
the origination date.

+ There is significant drop in the obligor's
revenue or profitability at the reporting date
which could result in a significant change in
the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations
relative to the origination date,

» Significant reduction in financial support
from a parent entity or other affiliate at the
reporting date which could result in a
significant change in the borrower's ability
to meet its obligations relative to the
origination date.

+ Significant deterioration in
liquidity/solvency levels of the obligor at the
reporting date which could result in a
significant change in the borrower's ability
to meet its obligations relative to the
origination date.

« Little or reduction in finaneial
support from a parent entity or other
affiliate at the reporting date which
conld result in a significant change in
the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations relative to the origination
date.

» No significant deterioration in
Yquidity/solvency levels of the obligor
at the reporting date which could result
in a significant change in the
bomower’s ability to meet its
obligations relative to the origination
date.

« For financial institutions, no
significant deterioration in obligor's
CAMELS (i.e, Capital, Asset Quality,
Management Capability, Earnings,
Liquidity, and Sensitivity to market
risks) at the reporting date which could
result in a significant change in the
botrower's ability to meet its
obligations relative to the origination
date.

» Other factors other than these listed above
that suggest that the ability of the obligor to
meet contractual obligations at the
reporting date has change materially from
the origination date.
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« No significant deterioration in
internal price indicators of credit risk
at the reporting date which could result
in a significant change in the
borrower's ability to meet its
obligations relative to the origination
date.

« Other factors other than those listed
above that suggest that the ability of
the obligor to meet contractual
obligations at the reporting date has
not change materially from the
origination date.

6.2.7 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques
The Expeeted Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be eredit-impaired, Expected
credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), and Loss Given Default
{LGD), defined as follows:

+ The PD represents the Likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial abligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months {12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

* EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12 months (12M FAD) or over
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD). For example, for a revolving commitment, the Group includes the current drawn balance
plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it oceur.

» Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defanlted exposure, LGD varies by type
of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availabitity of collateral or other credit support. LGI} is expressed as a
percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default (EAD), LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-
month LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime L.GD is the
percentage of loss expected Lo be made if the default occurs aver the remaining expected lifetime of the financial asset.

The ECL is determtined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for sach individual exposure ar collective
segment. These three components are multiplied together. This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is
then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECI. caleulation is the original effective
interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults
develop on a portfalio from the point of injtial recognition throughout the lifetime of the financial asset amortised cost. The
maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which varies by product type.

» For amortising products, this is based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over a 12month or lifetime basis.
This will also be adjusted for any expected overpavments made by a borrower, Early repayment/refinance assumptions are also
incorporated into the caleulation.

« For revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time of default. These assumplions vary hy
preduct type and enrrent limit utilisation band, based on analysis of the Group’s recent default data.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors which impact the recoveries made post default. These vary
by product type.

* For secured products, this is primarily based on collateral type and profected collateral values, historical disconnts to
market/book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs observed,

« For unsecured products, LGD's are typically set at produet level due to the limited differentiation in recoveries achieved ACross
different borrowers. These LGD's are influenced by eollection strategies, including contracted debt sales and price.
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6.2.8

6.2.8.1

6.2.8.2

6.2.8.3

6.2.7 (Contd)
Ferward-looking economic information is also inchided in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, KAD and LGD. These

assumptions vary by product type. Refer to the Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models” subhead for an
explanation of forward- leoking information and its inclusion in ECL calenlations,

The assumptions underlying the ECI, caleulation - such as how the maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change cte.
are monitored and reviewed by the Finance team on a periodic basis.

There have been no significant changes in estimation techniques or significant assurmptions made during between when the model was
adopted and the reporting period.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The ealeulation of ECL both incorperate forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical analysis and identified the
key economic variables impacting credit risk and expected credit losses for each portiolio.

IFRS 9 [B5.5.51] states that an entity need not undertake an exhaustive search for information but shall consider all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and that is relevant to the estimate of expected credit losses. In
addition, an entity is not required to incorperate forecasts of future economic conditions over the entire life of 2 financial instrument.
Rather, it suffices for an entity to extrapolate prajections for periods that are far in the future from available information.

Incorporating Forward-looking information into Multi-year PD Estimation

The Authority has financial instruments originating from different regions of the world, and as such, it may be impracticable to obtain
information on future economic conditions for all the relevant regions. The Authority has therefore incorporated FLI into multi-year
PD estimation using a two-step approach:

Step 1:
Convert Through-the-Cyeles (17'C) PDs to Point-in-Time (PIT} PDs using logistic regression with global historical default rates and

global macroeconomic variables (i.e. global GDP growth rate, global inflation rate and oil price). This is based on the fact that external
rating grades are comparable across industries and jurisdictions.

Step 2:
Incorporate the impact of local economic conditions by analysing the likelihood of change in the rating of each financial instrument
based on obligor specific information. This analysis will be conducied at every reporting date by considering the following information:

i. Rating outlook from external rating agencies for the obligor or the rclated sovereign

ii. The expected impact of local macroeconomic foracasts (e.g. local GDP growth rate, exchange rate, inflation rate, unemployment rate
ete.) on the obligor

iii. Other obligor specific qualitative information that may provide an indication of future change in ratings,

Incorporating FLI inte Multi-year EAD and LGD Estimation

The Authority adjusts the base case EAD and LGD estimates for periods where these parameters are expected to be significantly
different from their historical averages based on forward-looking macroeconomic information.

Macro economic variable affecting the ECL allowance

The real historieal gross domestic produet (GDP) growth rate in Nigeria, inflation and erude oi price were identified as the key
economic variables impacting the credit risk of the Group. Historical data on these variables for the last ten years were used to
determine the three cconomic scenarios (base, optimistic and downturn) and their scenario weightings.
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6.2.9  Economic variable assumptions
One of the most significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate as at 30 June 2019 are set out below. The scenarios
“best”, “optimistic” and “downturn” were used for all portfolios.

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
a GDP growth rate(%) Best 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%
Optimistic 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%
Downturn 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
b Inflation rate (%) Best 1% 3% 2% 2% 2%
Optirmistic 4% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Downturn 4% 3% 3% 3% 3%
¢ Oil price (USD) Best 69.40 70,00 70.00 70.00 70.00
Optimistic 60.00 65.00 69.00 71.30 73.50
Dovmntwrn 50,10 51.90 53.50 55.00 56.50

Sensitivity analysis on ECL Model

The mosl significant forward looking information with impacl an the ECL allowance of the Group include:
- GDP Growth rate

- Inflation rate

- Oil prices

The table below demonstrates the sensitivity of the ECL allowanee to movements in the significant forward looking indicators for
financial assets, with all other variables held constant:

Group Authority
ECL Net effect ECL Net effect
allowance allowance
N'ooo N'eoo N'ooo N'ooo

GDP Growth rate
10% increasc 172,611 {18,230) 125,671 (13,257}
No change 190,841 - 138,928 -
10% decrease 211,247 20,406 153,789 14,861
Inflation rate
10% iticrease 191,621 780 139,507 579
No change 190,841 - 138,928 -
10% decrease 190,342 {499) 138,576 (352}
Oil prices
10% increase 182,865 (7,976} 133,134 {5,794)
No change 190,841 - 138,928 -
10% decrcase 199,447 8,606 145,202 6,274
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6.2.10 Loss allowance

The loss allowance recognised in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described below:
» Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instraments experiencing significant increases {or decreases) of credit risk or

becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” (or “step down”) between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

+ Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as releases for financial instruments de-

recognised in the period;

+ Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period

maodels;

» Impacts on the measurement of ECL. due to changes made to models and assumptions;

+ Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value basis;

« Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denominated in foreign currencies and other movements; and
+ Financial assets derecognised and write-offs of allowances related to assets that are written off.

There were no assets written off during the period.

See notes 14.1 for an explaination of the changes in the loss allowanee of financial asset

period:

6.2.11 'Write-off policy

, ariging from regufar refreshing of inputs to

$ hetween the beginning and the end of the annual

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and
(ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing on ealtateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no reagonable

expectation of recovering in full,

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject te enforcement activity. Currently,

amounts on such finaneial assets during the period ended 30 Junc 2019.

there were no outstanding contractual

The table below analyses the Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost based an stage in which the allowanees taken on them are.
All financial assets fair valued through other comprehensive income are equity instruments

Group

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Nigerian treasury bitls

Open Market Opetations bills {OMO bills)
Fixed deposits

Loans and receivables

Other assets

Loss allowance (investment securities and other assets)
Carrying amount

Individually impaired

Collectively impaired

Authority

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Open Market Operations bills (OMO bills)
I‘ixed deposits

Loss allowance
Carrying amount

Individually impaired
Collectively impaired

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 months Lifetime Lifetime Total
exposure exposure exposure
N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo
9.404,938 - 9,404,938
187,529,541 187,529,541
98,902,893 98,902,803
1,641,035 . 1,641,035
36,421,294 36,421,204
233,899,701 - 333,899,701
(1,593,685) - (1,593,685}
£2,306,016 - 332,306,016
1,593,685 - 1,593,685
1,593,685 - 1,593,685
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 -
12 months Lifetime Lifetime Total
exposure exposure exposure
N'ooo N "o00 N "0o00 N 'ooo
187,529,541 - 187,529,541
98,902,893 - 98,902,893
290,733,664 o 290,733,664
(140,323} - (140,323}
200,593,341 g 290,593,341
140,323 - 140,323
140,323 - 140,323
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6.3

6.3.1

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset, or that such ehligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Group.

Management of liguidity risk

The Group's approach to managing liguidity is to have sufficient funds to meet its Habilities, as and when due, without incurring undue losses or
risking damage to the Group’s reputation. The Group manages its liquidity risk by maintaining eash levels to fund short term eperating

expenses.

The table below shows the Group's eurrent cash levels:

Cash in hand
Bank balances

Placements with financial institutions

Total cash and cash equivalents
Exposure to liquidity risk

Group Group Authority Authority

30 June 31 Pecemnber 30June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018

N'ovo N "go0 N'ooo N 'o0o0

11 133 11 133
42,486,404 43,908,683 30,249,569 20,531,728
35,651,882 32,245.474 33:165,523 32,245,474
78,138,297 76,154,290 69,415,103 61,777,335

The table below analyses the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities and unfunded commitments with private equity fund managers into
relevant maturity Groupings based on the remaining peried at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts diselosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Group
30 June 2019
In thousands of Naira

Trade payables

Other payables

Borrowings

Total liabilities

Unfunded commitments with private
equity fund managers

Total commitments

Group
31 December 2018
In theusands of Naira

Trade payables

Other payables

Borrowings

Total liabilities

Unfunded commitments with private
equity fund managers

Total commitments

Authority
30 June 2019
In thousands of Naira

Trade payables
Intercompany payables
Other payables
Total liabilities
NATC-NTPK loan puaranteed by NSIA
Unfunded commitments with private
equity fund managers
Total commitments

Up to 6 months Between 6 Between 1and 2| Greater than 2 Total
months and 1 years years
year
2,361,740 - - 2,361,740
31,543,308 - 31,543,308
4,025,568 4,040,217 8,772,869 18,589,791 35,418,445
37,930,616 4,030,217 8,772,869 18,589,791 69,323,493
43,319,178 - - - 43,319,178
43,319,178 - - - 43,319,178
Tip to 6 months| Between 6| Between1and 2| Greater than 2 Total
maonths and 1 years years
year
1,733,962 b - - 1,733,962
18,750,444 - 228,332 - 18,084,776
3,125,829 4,034,513 7.872.18 21,449,259 36,481,719
23,616,235 4,034,513 8,100,450 21,449,259 57,200,457
19,060,581 - - - 19,069,581
19,069,581 - - - 19,069,581
Up to 6 months Between 6| Betweeni1andz| Greater than 2 Total
months and 1 years Years
year
2,361,740 - - 2,361,740
8,528,854 - - . 8,528,854
15,267,207 - - - 15,267,207
20,157,801 - - - 26,157,801
4,025,568 4,030,217 8,772,869 18,589,791 35,418,445
20,216,128 - - - 20,216,128
33,241,696 4,030,217 8,772,869 18,589,791 64,634,573
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6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

Authority
31 December 2018
In thousands of Naira

Up to 6 months Between 6| Between 1 and 2| Greater than 2 Total
manths and 1 years years
year|
Trade payables 1,520,404 - 1,520,494
Intercompany payables 1,591,131 - - - 1,591,131
Other payables 15,456,623 - - 15,456,023
Total liabilities 18,568,248 . - - 18,568,248
NAIC-NPK loan guaranteed by NSiA 3,125,829 4,034,513 7,872,118 21,449,259 36,481,719
Unfunded commitments with private 14,002,831 - - - 14,002,831
equity fund managers
Total commitiments 17,128,660 4,034,513 7,872,118 21,449,259 50,484,550
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from unfavorable changes in the fair values of financial instruments cansed by adverse moves in market variables,
such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, commedity prices, eredit spreads and implied volatilities of the market rates. Market
tisk losses could result in a loss of earning and/or capital to the Group. The Group is exposed to market risk through its proprietary investments
and can experience capital erosion from its own direct investments in the market.

With regards to investments in certain asset classes, the Group's potential exposure can be categorised into two: namely, traditional investments
and alternative investments, Traditional investments include cash, listed equity and fixed income instruments. Alternative investiments are the
real estate asscts, private equity, hedge funds, unquoted securities and cquities, hespitality, and are generally less liguid than traditional
investments. Currently, the asset classes being referred to as alternative investments are the real cstate assets, private equity, hospitality and
infrastructure projects.

The Group’s Market risk Framework includes:

* Marke rigk - comprising equity, interest rate, interest basis and currency risks;

* Valuation risk - which derives from the valuation methodology chosen for unlisted asscts. A critical associated risk is that which relates to the
valuation model. The Group has exposure to valuation risk through its investments in real estate assets, private equity investments as well as
other alternative instruments and project development.

The Group manages market risk by actively controlling positions taken by investment managers in accordance with the investment strategy for
cach fund, The investment strategy outlines permissible asset classes, asset allocation limits and other position limits according to the portfolio
risk appetite and risk profile. Exceptions are escalated and investment managers are expected to provide a plan of action that would bring
portfolios within limits.

The identification, measurement and management of market rigk is categorised as follows:

Tracing assets/Financial assets

Trading assets are carried at fair value using publicly available market rates for traded securities. Positions are monitered regularly and
performance measured to relevant benchmarks.

Non-trading assets/ Non-financial assets

Key performance measures are set and a robust monitoring and reporting framework is put in place to monitor performance of the Authority's
investment in alternative and unlisted securities.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the Group's funetional currency.
The Group has an investment in a forcign operation, whose nel assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk as a result of the
translation of its financial statements from the operation’s functional currency to the Group’s presentation currency. Non-monetary financial
assets are not exposed to fereign exchange risk in accordance with the standards. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group's
foreign subsidiary is managed primarily through cash and cash equivalents denominated in the relevant foreign currencies,

The follwing tables show the sensitivity of the Group's total comprehensive income to appreciation or depreciation of the naira in relation to
other currencies.
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Concentration of foreign currency exposure

Group
30 June 2019 Naira uUsD Euro Total
N'ooo N'ovuo N 'co0 N 'ooo
Cash and cash equivalents 72,172,437 5,965,838 22 78,138,297
Investment securities (at amortised cost) 297,478,407 - 297,478,407
Investment securities (at FVTPL) - Monetary - 57,204,047 - 57,264,047
Other assets 33,478,435 2,042,850 - 36,421,294
Total monetary financial assets 105,650,872 363,651,151 20 469,302,045
Trade payables 822,136 1,992,353 - 2,814,489
Other payables 91,469,656 73,652 - 31,543,308
Deferred income relating to government grant 7,624,481 - 7,624,481
Payable to Federal Government of Nigeria 2,394,634 - 2,394,634
Borrowings 24,875,519 - - 24,875,519
Total monetary financial labilities 67,186,426 2,066,005 - 69,252,431
Net finaneial asset FCY exposure - 361,585,146 22 361,585,168
Sensitivity al 5% appreciation - (18,079,257) {1) (18,079,258)
Sensitivity at 5% depreciation - 18,079,257 1 18,079,258
Group
31 December 2018 Naira USD Euro Total
N'oo0 N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
Cash and cash equivalents 27,760,064 48,205,860 188,357 76,154,290
Investment securities (at amortised cost) - 287,443,046 - 287,443,046
Investment securities (at FYTPL) - Monetary 49,804,646 - 49,804,646
Other assets 456,363 35,124,807 - 35,581,170
Total monetary financial asscts 28,216,427 420,578,368 188,357 448,983,152
Trade payables 274,388 1,460,574 - 1,733,062
Other payables 3,708,804 15,047,640 = 18,756,444
Deferred income relating to government grant 8,051,162 - - 8,951,162
Payable to Federal Government of Nigeria 18,294,839 - - 18,294,839
Borrowings o 26,052,673 : 26,052,673
Total monetary financial liabilities 57,280,866 16,508,214 - 23,789,080
Net financial asset FCY exposure - 404,070,154 188,357 404,258,511
Sensitivity at 5% appreciation - (20,203,508) (9,118} (20,212,926)
Sensitivity al 5% depreciation 5 20,203,508 9,418 20,212,026
Authority
30 June 2019 Naira UsSD Euro Total
N 'o00 N'ooo N'ooo N ‘000
Cash and cash equivalents 67,055,211 2,350,870 22 69,415,103
Investment securities (at amortised cost) - 200,733,604 - 290,733,664
Investment securities (at FVTPL} - Monetary - 57,264,047 - 57,264,047
Other assets 27,444,394 15,094,813 42,539,207
Total monetary financial assets 94,499,605 305,452,394 22 459,052,021
Trade payables 369,387 1,992,353 = 2,361,740
Intercompany payables 8,454,402 74,452 - 8,528,854
Other payables 15,267,207 = - 15,267,207
Total monetary financial 24,090,996 2,060,805 - 26,157,801
Net financial asset FCY exposure - 363,385,589 22 363,385,611
Sensitivity at 5% appreciation - {18,169,279) (1) {18,169,281)
Sensitivity at 5% depreciation - 18,169,279 1 18,160,281
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Concentration of foreign currency exposure
Authority

41 December 2018 Naira UsSD Euro Total
N o000 N 'op00 N 'o0o N 'ooo
Cash and cash equivalents 27,760,064 33,828,914 188,357 61,777,335
Investment securitics (at amortised cost) - 285,232,084 285,232,084
Divestinent securities (at FVTPL) - Monetary - 49,804,640 - 49,804,046
Other assets 25,053,608 7,463,900 - 32,517,508
Total monetary financial assets 52,813,672 376,329,544 188,357 429,331,573
Trade payables 1,520,494 - - 1,520,494
Intercompany payables 1,591,131 - - 1,591,131
Other payables 15,456,023 - - 15,456,623
Total monetary finaneial 18,568,248 - - 18,568,248
Net financial asset FCY exposure - 376,329,544 188,357 376,517,901
Sensitivity at 5% appreciation - (18,816,477) (9,418) {18,825,895)
Sensitivity at 5% depreciation - 18,816,477 2,418 18,825,895

6.4.4 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss to net interest income (NIT) arising from changes in market interest rates on rate sensitive assets and

liabilities.

Nel interest income sensitivity

There are two types of scenarios that give rise to interest rate risk. These are where the Group holds variable rate instruments susceptible to cash
flow interest rate risk due to a change in market interest rates or the Groop holds debis instruments measured at fair value which will be
exposed to fair value interest rate risk. The Group holds debts instruments measured at fair value which are exposed to fair value interest rake
rigk, The table helow shows the impact of interest rate changes (increase/decrease) on the Group's fixed interest financial assets carried at fair

value and the effeet on other comprehensive income,

FVTPL investiments {US treasury notes)

FVTPL investments (Fixed income produets)

(All amounts are in thousands of Naira)
Group

40 June 2019

(All amounts are in thousands of Naira)
Group

31 December 2018

(Al amounts are in thousands of Naira)

Authority
30 June zo1g

(All amounts are in thousands of Naira)

Authority
31 December 2018

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N 'ooo N 'oo00 N 'o00
27,485,814 26,841,410 27,485,814 26,841,410
29,778,233 22,963,236 29,778,233 22,963,236
57,264,047 49,804,646 57,264,047 49,804,646
Impact on Impact of 5% Impact of 5%
strengthening weakening
Other comprehensive income 2,863,202 (2,863,202)
Impact on Sensitivity to 5% | Sensitivity to 5%
strengthening  Jweakening
Other comprehensive income 2,490,232 (2,490,232)
Impact on Sensitivity to 5% | Sensitivity to 5%
strengthening  |weakening
Other comprehensive income 2,863,202 (2,863,202)
Impact on Sensitivityto 5% | Sensitivity to 5%
strengthening weakening
Cther comprehensive income 2,490,232 (2,490,232}
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6.4.5 Equities securities price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group and recognised on the consolidated statement of
finaneial position at FVOCL The Group is not exposed to commodity price sk, To manage its price risk arising from investmenis in equity
securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.

The table below summarises the impact of increases/ decreases on the Group’s other comprehensive incomme and equity. The analysis is based
an the assumption that the equity prices had increased/decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant:

Group Group Authority Authority

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018

N 'oon N'000 N '000 N'ooo

Equity instruments measured at FVOCI 300,486 473,724 234,186 396,732
(300,486) (473,724} (234,186) (396,732}
Other comprehensive income would increase/(decrease} as a result of gains/(losses) on equity seeuritics measured at FVOCT by the amounts

shown above.

7 Fair value hierarchy
The Group classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investment portfolio aceording to the following hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets Quoted instruments

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable Lguity instruments guoted in over-the
either directly (i.e. a5 prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) counter {OTC) markets

Level3 Inputs that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable | Ungquoted equity instruments and debt
inputs) instruments

Unquoted equity instruments and debt instruments are measured in accordanee with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital
valuation guidelines with reference to the most appropriate information available at the time of measvrement,

The following tables analyse within the fair value hierarchy the Authority's financial assets (by clags) measured at fair value at 30 June 2019, Al
fair value measurements disclosed are recurring fair value measurements.

Group
30 June 2019
Investment securities at FYOCI Level & Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
N'ooo N'ooo N'o00 N'0o00
NG Clearing Ltd __ o —— 523,000 523,000
MTN securities, Bridge Academies Limited, Chieftain ete 4,160,721 - 1,326,000 5,486,721
4,160,721 - 1,849,000 6,000,721
31 December 2018
Investment securities at FVOCI Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'ooo N'ooo N'o00 N'ooo
NG Clearing Ltd B - 523,000 523,000
MTN securities, Bridge Academies Limited and Chieftain 4,075,587 2,796,000 1,539,835 8,951,482
Investments
4,675_,_587 2,736,000 2,062,835 9,474,482
Authority
30 June 2019
Investment securities at FVOCH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'oo0 N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
NG Clearing Lid - - 523,000 523,000
MTN securities, Bridge Academies Limited, Chieftain etc 4,160,721 - - 4,160,721
4,160,721 - 523,000 4,083,721
Authority
g1 December 2018
Investment securities available for sale Level 1 Level 2 Tevel 3 Total
N'ooo N'ooo N'oco N'ooo
NG Clearing Ltd - - 523,000 523,000
MTN securities, Bridge Academies Limited and Chieftain 4,675,587 2,736,060 - 7,411,047
Investments
4,675,587 2,736,000 523,000 7,934,647
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Group
30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'oo0 N'oo0 N "000 N 'oco
Currency swap (Note 21.3.1) - 4,366,936 . 3,366,036
Private equity investments - 52,549,540 52,549,540
Hedge funds and long only equity investments - 70,737,937 70,737,037
Nigeria Infrastructure Debt Fund 1,626,000 - - 1,626,000
US treasury notes - 27,485,814 - 27,485,814
Fixed income proditcts - 29,778,233 - 20,778,233
1,626,000 60,610,083 123,287,477 185;544,460
Group N
31 December 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N 'o000 N'000 N'ooo N'ooo
Currency swap (Note 21.3.1) - 762,044 - 762,044
Private equity investments - - 43,559,000 43,559,000
Iedge funds and long only equity investments - - 69,343,323 69,343,323
Nigeria Infrastructure Debt Fund - 1,626,000 - 1,626,000
US treasury notes - 20,841,410 - 26,841,410
Fixed income products - 22,003,236 - 22,003,236
- 52,192,690 112,002,323 165,095,013
Authority
30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N'o00 N'ooo N ‘o000 N'ooo
Currency swap (Note 21.3.1) - 3,366,936 = 3.366,030
Private equity investments - - 32,822,182 32,822,182
Hedge funds and long only equity investments - - 70,737,937 70,737,937
Nieeria Infrastructure Debt Fund 1,626,000 - - 1,626,000
S treasury notes - 27,485,814 - 27,485,814
Fixed income products 20,778,233 - 20,778,293
1,626,000 60,630,083 103,560,119 165,817,102
Authority
31 December 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
N 'ooo N 'ooo N'goo N'ooo
Currency swap (Note 21.3.1) - 702,044 - 762,044
Private equity investments - 26,993,165 26,933,165
Fedge funds and long only equity investments - - 60,343,323 69,343,323
Nigeria Infrastrecture Debt Fund - 1,626,000 - 1,626,000
US treasury notes - 26,841,410 - 206,841,410
Fixed income products - 22,063,236 - 22,063,236
- 52,192,690 96,270,488 148,469,178

(@) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices as at 30 June 2019. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry Group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for finanecial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

(b) Financial instruments in level 2

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indireetly. They include investments in equity securities that arc not traded in an active market but for which a trading platform exists on which
a price can be determined for which market participants would pay in order to purchase the asset as at the reporting date i.e.at the Over-the-
Counter alternative markets.

These valuation techniques maximise the use of ohservable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of the
significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments inelude quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
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Fair value hicrarchy (cont'd)
(c) Financial instruments in level 3

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs that have been applied in valuing the respective assct or liability. The determination of what constitutes
observable’ requires significant judgment by the Authority. The Authority considers ohservable data to be market data that is readily available,
regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary and provided by independent saurees that are actively invelved in the
relevant market. There were no transfers between levels during the period.

Inuestments in hedge funds and private equity funds measured at FYOCT
In determining the fair value of these investments, the Authority relies on the valuation as reported in the latest available financial stalements
and/ or capital account statements provided by the investment manager, unless the Authority is aware of reasons that such a valuation may not
be the hest approximation of fair value. In such cases, the Authority reserves the right to assign a fair value to such investments which differs

from the one reported by the investment manager.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the period ended 30 June 2019 for financial assets measured at FVOCI,

FVPL - Private equity

Opening balance

Additions

Disposals, repayments and distributions received
Tair value movement

IFRS g reclassification

Exchange gain

Closing balance

FVPL - Hedge funds

Opening balance

Additions

Disposals, repayments and write-offs
Fair value movement

IFRS g reclassification

Exchange gain

Closing balance

Financial assets measured at FVOCI - Bridge
Academies Limited and NG Clearing

Opening balance
Additions

Fair value movement
Exchange gain
Closing balance

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -

Private equity
Opening balance
Additions
Disposals, repayments and distributions received
Fair value movement
IFRS g reclassification
Exchange gain
Closing balance

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N 'o0o0 N'ooo N 'oco
- 40,400,222 - 23,825,778
. (40,400,222} - (23,825,778}
Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N "oo0 N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo
o 64,770,690 = 64,770,690
~ (64,770,690} = {64,770,690)
Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
2,062,835 1,143,600 523,000 -
- 1,139,835 - 523,000
- (299,000} -
E 78,400 & 5
2,062,835 2,062,835 523,000 523,000
Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N'oo0 N'ooo
43,559,000 - 26,933,165 -
8,503,906 9,003,662 532,538 6,068,415
(995,714) (3,504,546} (914,860} (2,995,848)
1,482,348 (4,282,440) 1,482,348 (1,600,642)
- 40,400,222 - 23,825,778
- 1,942,102 & 1,635,462
52,549,540 43,559,000 32,822,182 26,031,165
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7.1.1

Financial assets at fair value through profit ox loss -

Hedge funds
Opening balance
Additions

Disposals, repayments and distributions received

Fair value movement
IFRS g reclassification
Exchange gain/(loss)
Closing balance

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value movement
Fair value movement

There were no level 3 instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss.

Group
30 June 2019

In thousands of Naira

Financial assets

Other receivables

Aceount receivables

Financial assets measured at amortised
cost

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables
Payables to Federal Government in
respect of the Second Niger Bridge

31 December 2018
In thousands of Naira
Financial assets
Other receivables
Trade receivables

Financial assets measured at amortised
cost

Financizl liabilitics
Rorrowings
Trade payables

Other payables

Payables to Federal Government in
respect of the Secand Niger Bridge

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N 'o00
69,343,323 - 69,343,323 .
6,500,000 25,953,500 6,500,000 25,953,500
(8,952,765) (16,592,617) (8,952,765} (16,592,617)
4,218,205 {9,221,262) 4,218,205 {9,221,262)
- 64,770,690 - 64,770,690
- 4,433,012 - 4,433,012
71,108,763 69,343,323 71,108,763 69,343,323
Sensitivity analysis of fair value movements for level 3 financial assets measured at FVOCI
The table below shows ihe sensitivity analysis of fair value movements for level 3 financial assets measured at FVOCI:
Group Authority
30 June 30 June
2019 2019
N'ooo N'ooo
5% changes in fair | Inputs Difference Difference
value movement
Increase - 285,028 285,028
ik
Decrease NAV/Fair value (285,028) (285,028}
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial labilities not measured at fair value
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Yair value
7,808,571 B - 7,808,571 7,808,571
28,612,723 - - 28,612,723 28,612,723
297,287,566 - 9,393,669 300,692,504 316,086,173
333,708,860 e 9,393,669 343,113,798 352,507,467
24,875,519 - - 24,875,519 24,875,519
2,814,489 - - 2,814,489 2,814,489
31,543,308 B - 31,543,308 31,543,308
2,394,634 - - 2,394,634 2,304,634
61,627,050 - - 61,627,950 61,627,050
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
11,134,143 - - 11,534,143 11,134,143
8,333,282 - S 8,333,282 8,333,282
286,822,001 - 18,578,065 268,251,836 286,829,901
306,289,516 - 18,578,065 287,719,261 306,297,326
26,052,073 - - 26,052,673 26,052,673
1,733,962 = - 1,733,962 1,733,962
18,756,444 - - 18,756,444 18,756,444
18,294,839 = - 18,294,839 18,294,839
64,837,918 - - 64,837,018 64,837,918
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Authority
30 June 2019
Carrying value Level & Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
In thousends of Naira
Financial assets
Other receivables 14,576,062 - 3,576,062 3,576,062
Account receivables 3,097,719 “ . 3,007,719 3,097,719
Intercompany receivables 35,865,426 - - 35,865,426 15,865,426
Financial instruments at amortised cost 290,594,736 - 4,289,061 286,293,506 290,583,467
333,133,943 E 4,289,961 328,832,713  333.122,674
Financial iabilities
Trade payables 2,161,740 - - 2,361,740 2,361,740
Intercompany payvables 8,528,854 - 8,528,854 8,528,854
Other payables 15,267,207 - - 15,267,207 15,267,207
26,157,801 - - 26,157,801 26,157,801
31 December 2018
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level g Fair value
In thousands of Naira
Financial assets
Other receivables 2,171,076 - - 2,171,076 2,171,076
Account receivables 3,456,830 - - 3,456,830 3,456,830
Intercompany receivables 30,346,432 - - 30,346,432 30,346,432
Advances to staff - -
Financial instruments at amortised cost 285,232,084 14,139,820 274,971,114 280,110,934
321,206,422 - 14,139,820 310,945,452 325,085,272
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 1,520,494 - - 1,520,494 1,520,494
Intercompany payables 1,591,131 - 1,591,191 1,591,131
Other payables 15,450,623 - - 15,456,623 15,450,623
18,568,248 - - 18,568,248 18,568,248

8 Fund information

The Authority has three Funds being the Stahilisation Fund (SF), Future Generations Fund {FGF) and Nigeria Infrastructure Fund (NIF}. Each
of the Funds is managed separately as they entail different investment ohjectives and strategies and contain investments in different products.

Yor each of the Funds, the management reviews the internal management report. The objective and principal investment products of the
respective reportable segments arc as follows:

Stabilisation Fund (SF) | To provide stabilisation support to the Federation in times of economic stress

Future Generation Fund | To invest in a diversified portfolio of appropriate growth investments in order to provide future generation of]

(FGF) Nigerians a solid savings base for such a time as the hydrocarbon reserves in Nigeria are exhausted
Nigeria Infrastructure To invest in infrastructure projects in Nigeria that meet our targeted financial returns and contrbute to the
Fund {NIF} development of essential infrastrueture in Nigeria

Information regarding the results of each Fund is included below. Performance is measured based on Fund as included in the internal
management reports. Funds profitability is used to measure performance as the directors believe that such information is most relevant in
evaluating the profitability of each fund,
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Fund information

30 June 2019

Interest income
Investment income

Interest income on instrument measured at
FVTPL

Gain/(Yoss) on financial assets

Net foreign exchange gain

Total operating segment income

Investment management fees

Global and local custodian fees
Impairment write back/(charge) on
financial assets

Total operating fund profit
Revenue from infrastructure
subsidiaries investinent

Expense from infrastructure
subsidiaries investment

Loss from infrastructure
subsidiaries investment

Other income

Operating and administrative expenses
Interest expense

Share of profit of investment in
associate

Profit/{loss) before tax

Taxation

Profit for the period

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of NSIA
Non-controlling interest

Reportable fund assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities

Other assets

Inventories

Investments accounted for using the
equity method

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Reportable fund liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings

Stabilisation Fature Nigeria Unallocated Total
Fund Generations  Infrastructure
Fund Fund
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'oo0 N'ooo
4,009,646 6,798,191 4,255,478 2,326 15,065,641
369,156 625,889 391,789 448 1,387,280
134,163 227,468 142,389 . 504,020
1,826,242 3,006,319 1,938,210 - 6,860,771
466,200 790,424 494,783 (1,683} 1,749,724
6,805,407 11,538,201 7,222,649 1,091 25,567,438
{36,619) (508,163} {11,038) B (555,820}
(8,680) (120,465) (2,617) B {131,762)
89,730 1,245,205 27,048 - 1,361,983
6,849,838 12,154,868 7,236,042 1,091 26,241,839
- - 16,520,885 - 10,520,885
- g (17.980,410) - (17,980,410}
- - (1,459,525) - (1,459,525)
- . 1,337,004 9,697 1,346,791
(13) (375,827) (397.468) (1,376,959) (2,150,267)
(1,945,208) - (1,845,208}
- - 541,761 541,761
6,849,825 11,779,041 5,312,696 (1,366,171) 22,575,391
E (72,693) - (72,693)
6,849,825 11,706,348 5,312,606 (1,366,171} 22,502,608
6,849,825 11,706,499 5,312,606 (1,366,171} 22,502,849
- (151) - . (151)
6,849,825 11,706,348 5,312,606 (1,366,171} 22,502,698
12,702,685 16,308,264 16,564,502 32,562,846 78,138,207
108,950,133 200,068,818 179,822,798 - 488,841,747
1,207,461 17,556,961 33,651,983 369,806 52,786,301
- - 18,935,112 = 18,935,112
§ - 14,216,073 - 14,216,073
s - - 1,765,971 1,765,971
. - - 42,978 42,978
122,860,279 233,934,043 263,190,468 34,741,691 654,726,479
9,685,900 708,545 35,916,909 16,108,762 62,420,115
E E 24,875,519 S 24,875,519
9,685,000 708,545 60,792,428 16,108,762 87,295,634
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Stahilisation Future Nigeria Unallocated Total
Fund Generations  Infrastructure
Fund Fund

31 December 2018 N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ogo N'ooo
Interest income 1,823,619 11,490,431 8,494,318 9,848 23,818,216
Investment income 575,057 1,469,123 1,164,032 - 3,208,212
Interest income on instrument 101,101 493,022 141,802 - 796,525
measured at FVPL

Net gain on financial assets (669,772) 1,249,818 (334,086) - 245,060
Net foreign exchange gain 4,938,373 5,378,109 7,679,155 56,554 18,052,191
Total operating segment income 8,828,378 20,081,103 17,145,221 60,402 46,121,104
Jnvestment management fees (36.212) (850,939) - - (887,151)
Local custodian fees (15,696) {23,907) (6,010} {45,013
Global custodian fees (5,032) (54,080} {10,739} (19,778) (80,629)
Impairment charge on financial assets (64,166} (129,262} (750,495) - (943,923)
Total fund investment (121,106) (1,058,188) (767,244) (19,778) (1,066,316)
management & custodian fees

Total operating fund profit 8,707,272 19,022,915 16,377,077 46,624 44,154,788
Revenue from infrastructure - - 27,403,230 - 27,403,230
subsidiaries investment

Expense from infrastructure - - (30,608,117} - {30,608,117)
subsidiaries investment

Loss from infrastructure - - (3,204,887) - (3,204,887)
subsidiaries investment

Other income - 1,016,780 10,370,868 8,610 11,405,258
Operating and administrative expenses (707,034) (1,410,122) (836,088) (808,081) (3,762,225)
Finance cost - - {2,617,160) - (2,617,160}
Share of profit of investment in - - 209,300 - 209,300
associate

Profit before tax 8,000,238 18,629,573 20,308,110 (752,847) 46,185,074
Taxation - (219,461) - - (219,461)
Profit after tax 8,000,238 18,410,112 20,308,110 (752,847) 45,965,613
Profit from discontnued operations - - 538,816 - 538.816
Profit for the year 8,000,238 18,410,112 20,846,926 (752,847) 46,504,429
Profit attributable to;

Owners of NSIA 8,000,238 18,409,220 20,846,925 (752,847) 46,503,536
Non-controlling interest - o3 - - 893

8,000,238 18,410,113 20,846,925 (752,847) 46,504,429

31 December 2018

Reportable fund assets

Cash and cash equivalents 17,493,387 25,260,097 20,327,973 13,072,833 76,154,290
Investinent securities 92,776,689 195,350,614 179,264,283 - 461,391,586
Other assets 1,013,794 2,418,184 40,582,636 174,755 44,189,304
Inventories - - 20,685,075 - 20,685,075
Investments aceounted for using the - 13,647,879 - 13,647,879
equity method

Investment in subsidiary - - - - B
Property and equipment - - 1,344,006 272,950 1,617,016
Intangible assets - - - 12,893 12,893
111,283,870 223,028,895 209,851,912 13,533,431 617,698,108

Reportable fund liabilities

Other liabilities 1,411,906 658,701 30,236,130 15,951,222 48,258,049
Borrowings - - 26,052,673 - 26,052,673

1,411,906 658,791 56,288,803 15,951,222 74,310,722
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9 Interest income

Interest inrome on Nigerian treasuny bills
Interest incoine om fixed deposits

Interest inecome on open market opesation bills

Interest income on Eurabond
Interest income o loans
Iiterest income on bank balanees

10 lnvestment income

Invesiment incomu from seeuritics

11 Interest income on financial assets at
FVTPL

Interest inconie on U tieasury notes
Intercal incume Erom fooed inceme products

iz Gain/(loss) on financial assets

Net gain /(loss) on finuncial assets ot fuir volue
through profit ar loss (Note 12.1)

Net gain on US treasury notes and fixed income
products

Net gain /(loss) on fnancial assels al faiv
value through profit orloss (FYTPL)

Unrealised gain/{loss) on financind swap
Realised gein on financial svop

Fuir value changes on private equily, hedge
funds nnd other cecuritics

Net gnin/{loss) on sale of equily instrumenis

13 Net forcign exchonge gain

Net foreign exchunge gin

14 Impairmentcharge/(write back) on
financial assets

Invesiment Securilics
Other assets

Group Authority
Six menths ended ‘Three months ended Six months ended Three months ended
Ao June 30 June ae June 3o Junc
RO1G 2018 201G 2018 2019 2018 2019 2016
N "ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'oop N'ooo N'ooo
209,671 - 55,418 209,671 - 52,418 B
2,706,456 2,935,027 428,406 1,260,302 2,796,456 2,995,003 1,428,406 1,260,300
1,528,906 12,979,369 5460.902 12,470,300 11.528,906 12.079,1360 5,400,962 12,079,369
338,450 664,752 187,413 332,403 338,456 664,757 187,41 332,409
46,047 N
234,705 50,428 234,501 144,805 2 oL
 16,817,84: 88 - 14,815,57

Group Awnthority
Six montlhs ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June Sixmonths ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2010 2018
N'ooo _N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
263,663 855,613 0,886 65_6_3;52 1,306,101 490,395 455070

Bs5613 2119886

556 KEL] 1,306,101 406,395 455,170

Group Anthority
Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June Six ruonths ended 3o June Three months ended 3o June
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N ‘000 N 'ooo N ‘oon N'ooo N'coo N ‘oon
232,218 86,716 124,517 54,012 F 18 86,716 124,713 54,012
271,802 76,349 139,418 32,263 271,82 76,349 139,418
_7 504,020 163,065 263,731 _7,_1_14,u:d 163,065 263,731 N
Group Authority
Six months ended 30 June Theree montlis ended 3o June Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June
2019 aoc18 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
_N'oco __N'ooo _N'oon N'ooo N ‘000 N'voo N'ooo N'ooo
6,050,317 (7182,526) 108,262 (6,475,149) 7,473,460 (7:444,872) 1,370,830 (6,128,460)
610,456 8870 334,181 - b10459 8,870 334,113 8,87
6,860,771 3 (6,475,149} 8,683,919 {'7.436,002) 1,704,947 (6,119,590}
—_— — L R Y O, 2 Lo e —
Group Authority
Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June Three months ended go June
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
2,604,803 (4,705.574) (2,218,270} (a.2e8307) 2,604,893 (4:705:474) (2,218,270) (3,228,307)
689,286 2,805,572 680,286 - 2,805,572
3860,599 [a.294,712) 281182 (3,008,644) 5,083,747 [4,557.058) 1.543,810 {3.561,955)
__(B50,082) 661,802 ~ . (004,466) 1,817,560 (850,282)
108,202 16,475,149) 7,473,460 1,370,836
Group Authority
Six tnonths ended 3o June Three manths ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June Three menths ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
N 'oon N 'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo - N ‘oo0
1,649,015 B 54,577 - 1,649,482 66,526
1,649,015 54,577 1,649,482 54,370 66,5206
Group Authority
Six months ended 30 June Three monihs ended 30 Jane Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 zo1B 2019 2018 2019 2018
. N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 'oon N'ooo N ‘goo
[qaong) 103,445 123.529) [33:271) {430,998) 103,445 (27,966) (33,271)
{031,860) 6,978,076 437,026 (1,0948,073) 466 = 234
~AL361.983) 7,081,521 813497 (1,081344)  (430.532)  _1oga45 {27.752) Laz.eyy)
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14 'The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance of financial assets between the beginning and the end of the annual

period:

Group Stage1 Stage 2

Stage 3

12-month ECL Lifetime
ECL

N'ooo N'ooo

Lifetime
ECL

N 'ooo

Purchased
credit-
impairved

N 'ooo0

Total

N '‘ooo

Loss allowance as at 1 January

2019

- Investment securities 620,955 -
- Other assets 2,334,713 -

620,955
2,334,713

2,955,668 =

Movements with P&L impact
Transfers:

Transfer froin Stage 1 to Stage 2

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 - -
Changes on financial assets -
during the period
~Investment securities (430,114) -
- Other assets {931,869} -
Changes in PDs/L.GDs/IADs - -
Changes to model assumptions and - -
methodologies
Modification of contractual cash - =
flows of financial assets
Unwind of discount - -
FX and other movements &

2,955,668

{430,114}
(931,860)

Total net P&L charge during (1,361,983) -
the period

{1,361,983)

Other movements with no

P&L impact

Transfers;
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 - -

Financial assets derecognised - -

during the period

Write-offs 2 _

Loss allowance as at 30 June

2019

- Investment securities 190,841 -

- Other assets 1,402,844 -

190,841
1,402,844

1,593,685 =

1,593,685
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Authority Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

1z-month
Exposur

N'oo0

Lifetime ECL

N 000

Lifetime
ECL

N'ooo

Purchased
credit-
impaired

N 000

Total

N 'oo0

Loss allowanee as at 1 January

2019

- Investment securities 509,926
= Other assets 929

569,926
929

570,855
Movements with P&I impact

Transfers;
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 -
Changes on financial assets during -
the period
- Investment securities (430,998)
- Other assets 466
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs S
Changes to mode] assumptions and -
methodologies
Modification of contractual cash -
flows of financial assets
Unwind of discount -
FX and other movements

570,855

(430,998)
466

Total net P&L charge during (430,532)
the period

(430,532)

Other movements with no P&L impact
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 -
Financial assets derecognised -
during the perfod
Write-offs N
Loss allowance as at 3o June
2019
- Investment securities 138,028
- Other assets 1,395

138,928
1,395

140,323

140,323

52



Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority

Unaudited consolidated and separate interim financial statements
For the 6 months period ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the financial statements

5 Revenue from infrastrnetire subsidiaries investments

Group Authority
Six months ended 30 June Three menths ended g0 June Six months ended go June Three months ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018 a01g 2018 aciy 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ono N 'ooo N'ooo _N'oon N'ooo
Revenue from sale of fertilizers 16,520,885 14,001,885 1i,860,750 3,502,410 - -
Guarantee fec invome - 157,500 - 81,250 -
16,520,685 14,159,385 11,860,750 2,383,660 ~ - - -

Revenue from sale of fertilizer represents revenus from sale of finished and packaged fentilizer 1o Agro-dealers and Slate Governments,

Gunrantee fee inceine represents the ineotne camed by Infnstyucture Cred it Guarantee Company Limiled for providing gunrantee for hond issued By some issuing entities, The company beamme a Joint

venlure on 19 December 2018 consequently there s been no guamntes foe income recognized during the current period.

6 Expense from Infrastructure subsidiaries investments

Group Authority
Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2014 z018
N'ooo N'oon N'oon N’'oco N'ooo N'oono N'aoo N'ooo
Cost of sales of fertilizers {Nate 16.1) 17,580,410 26,680,243 12,808,114 9,823,090 - - -
Guatunice fee expenses e - e - 38903 : - . . I
17,080,4 20,710,146 12,808,114
164 Cosiof sales of fertilizery
Group Authority
Six uonths ended 30 June Three menths ended 30 Junc Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 3o June
2019 2018 2019 2m8 2019 2018 2019 2018
- N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N ‘ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo
Raw materials consumed 15,823,888 10,995,139 13,073,915 5,222,958 - - -
Blending plants fees. 2,155,772 134,894 1,371,710 1,489,064 -
Direct trucking, storage and other logjstics 4,497,248 (1.123,757) 2,134.320
Fertilizer cleasing and testing expense . - 750 e B L e
17,980,410 20,68 -
1. S =
17 Other income
Group Avthority
8ix months ended 30 Jone Three months ended 30 Jupe Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June
2019 2048 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
_ N'ooo N’ooo N'ooa N'ooo . N'ooo . N'ooo N'ooo
Fiduciary inoume 1,171,860 1,020,387 1,016,914
Sulisidy lrom Federnl Covernment of )
Nigeria un cost diffentinl on fortilizer sales Saglise
Benefit from below market ot loan 1,926,701 255,138 - - .
Other income . 20,060 286,655 (662,040) - 9,667 - 1,102 -
1,346,791 5,204,805 (662,046) 2,100,560 9,697 1,020,387 1,108 1,016,914
Subsidy from the Fedeml Government of Nigeria on cost differentials on sales of fertilizer reftes 10 approved disbursement by 1he Federal Governient of Nigeria for cost differential on the sales of
fertilizer by the Group subsidiary NAIC-NPK 11d, The subsidy disclosed in 2018 was granted 16 the group to settle the shortfalls of the 2017 and 2018 Presidential Fertilizer |risiative (EFD. There has been
na subsidy received in the current period,
Benefit from beluw market vate Joan arose from the <imight line amortisation of 1he fir value afthe benefit over thie tenor of the borrowing. See Nole 2.1 for edditionul information.
18 Operating and administrative expenscs
Groitp Autkority
Six months ended 30 Junc ‘Three months ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June Three months ended 30 June
2019 2018 20t9 2018 201G 2018 2015 2018
N'ooo N'oo0 N’ooo N ‘ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N'ono N'coo
Persunncl expenses (Note 18 1) 897,273 1,016,503 Hug,748 428,809 897,273 1,016,502 500,748 500,667
Direetors expenses (Non-execulbves) LG,000 25,000 25,000 G350 50,000 25,000 25,000 12,500
Depreciation 81,245 45,611 57,614 13,554 815z 19,562 57521 7344
Amartisation - ax? 264 63
Audit fecs 5,650 J7.000 17,975 19,025 20,550 21,750 10,475 11,275
Non-audit fees 10,000 10,000 5,000 5,000 10,000 10,600 5,000 5,000
Other professional fees 336,427 244,509 176,011 115,666 270,407 217,8in 159,221 96,199
General and administrative expenscs 594,167 4B6,736 530,328 388,829 137,410 190,006 71,240 B2,807
Office rent and ather cxpenses 78,240 64,072 43560 80,252 78239 73448 43,569
Travel expenses — 42,525 27,947 20449 54,282 43,535 13, 7,526
icE L’r",-’("";:' L 1,414,290 1,046,600 1*61_0.726__ 1,621,646 045,206 796,887
18,1 Personnel expenses
Salorvies and ellowances 961,061 521,881 400,369 Bg7,279 961,060 531,881 473197
Defined contribution plan . 55,532 (22,133) 22,590 55,532 {32,137) 27,470
—_— —ei93 509748 —S97A78 noiigr_ 5os.gaB. 50,667
19  Inlercst expense
Group Anthority
Six months ended 30 Jone Three months ended 30 June Six months ended 30 Jime Three menths ended 30 June
2019 2018 2019 2019 a2m8 2019 2m8
B __N'ege  N'soo o N 'ooo N'ooo N’'ooo N'ooo
Effective interest on borowisgs 1,04, = N o 5 .
945 L1 . e

Effective inlerest on borrowings relales to the jmtercat expense the Group incarred fn connection with the borrowing of funds. The emount bosrowed was provided by the Central Bank of Nigeria to NAIC
NPK {n subsidiary of the Group) 1o finance the Presidentinl Fertilizer Initiative for which the Aulherity initially provided stop-gap financing. See notes 29 for details of the borrowings.
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20

Z1

21,1

21.2

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Bank balances
Money market placements

Investment securities

Financial assets measured at

amortised cost 211
Financial assets measured at 2
FVOCI ’
Financial assets at fair value 5
through profit or loss -3

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Eurcbonds
Nigerian treasury bills

Open market operations bills (OMO bills)
Fixed deposits
Loans and receivables

Impairment /Expected Credit loss

Maturity analysis:
Current

Financial assets measured at FVOCI

Equity instruments

NG Clearing Lid

MTN securities, Bridge Academies Limited,
Chieftain Investments ete

Maturity analysis:
Non-current

Group Authority

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N 'ooo N'oo00 N 'oo0 N 'ooo
1 133 1 133
42,486,404 43,908,683 36,249,569 29,531,728
35,651,882 32,245,474 43,165,523 32,245,474
78,138,297 76,154,200 69,415,103 61,777,335

Money market placements classified as cash and eash equivalents are placements with less than 90 days maturity period.

Group Group Authority Authority

30 June 31 December 30 Junc 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'oo0 N'ooo0o N 'o00 N 'ooo
297,287,566 286,822,091 290,594,736 285,232,084
6,009,721 9,474,482 4,683,721 7:934.647
185,544,460 165,095,013 165.817,102 148,460,178

488,841,747 461,391,586 461,095,559 441,635,909
Group Group Authority Authority

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N 'ooo N 'oo0 N'ooo
- 10,260,970 - 10,260,970
9,404,938 3,084,976 4,301,230 3,984,976
187,529,541 178,487,028 187,529,541 178,487,028
98,902,893 93,069,036 98,902,893 93,069,036
1,641,035 1,641,036 = &
297,478,407 287,443,046 290,733,664 285,802,010
(190,841) (620,955) (138,928) (569,926)
297,287,566 286,822,001 290,594,736 285,232,084
297,287,566 286,822,001 290,594,736 285,232,084
297,287,566 286,822,091 290,594,736 285,232,084
Group Group Authority Authority

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018

N 'ooo N 'ooo N ‘o000 N'ooo
523,000 523,000 523,000 523,000
5,486,721 #,951,482 4,160,721 7,411,647
6,009,721 9,474,482 4,683,721 7/934,647
6,009,721 9,474,482 4,683,721 7,934,647
6,009,721 9,474,482 4,683,721 7:934,647
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21,3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo
Currency swap (Note 21.3.1) 3,306,936 702,044 3,366,936 762,044
Private equity investiments 52,540,540 43,559,000 32,802,182 26,933,165

Hedge funds and long only equity
{uvestments 70,737,937 69,343,323 70,737,937 60,343,323
Nigeria Infrastructure Debt Fund 1,626,000 1,626,000 1,626,000 1,626,000
Fixed income products 209,778,233 22,963,236 20,778,233 22,063,236
US treasury notes 27,485,814 26,841,410 27,485,814 26,841,410
185,544,460 165,095,013 165,817,102 148,469,178

Maturity analysis:

Current 26,367,784 17,238,887 26,367,784 17,238,887
Non-current 159,176,676 147,856,126 139,449,318 131,230,291
185,544,460 165,005,013 165,817,102 148,469,178

21,3.1 For swap instruments, the halance for the period shows the fair value of the financial assets arising from the currency swap transactions
with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN). The notional contract amount of $541.87million (2018: $515.5million) represents the basis on
which the changes in fair value were measured. The netional amount indicates the valume of transactions as at the period end and are
indicative of neither the market risk nor the credit risk. As a result of the counterparty involved, we have assessed the impact of credit risk
on the financal asset to be minimal, as the eounterparty (CBN) is backed by the sovereign guarantee of the Federal Government of
Nigeria. In licu of the foregoing, a credit value adjustment was not efected on the fair valuation of the derivative.

22 Other assets

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N 'ooo N 'ooo N 'o00 N 'oco
Financial assets:
Other receivables 7,808,571 11,134,143 3,576,062 2,171,076
Aceount receivables 28,612,723 8,334,282 3,097,715 3,456,830
Intercompany receivables - 35,865,426 30,346,432
36,421,294 19,467,425 42,539,207 35:974,338
Impairment /Expected Credit loss (1,402,844) (2,334,713) (1,395) (929}
Total financial assets 25,018,450 17,132,712 42,537,812 35,073,400
Non-financial assets:
Prepayment 1,654,106 10,942,912 169,122 109,269
Cost incurred on behalf of the Federal
Government of Nigeria 16,113,745 16,113,745 - B
Total other assets 52,786,301 44,189,369 42,706,934 36,082,678
Maturity analysis:
Non-current 52,786,301 44,189,369 42,706,934 36,082,078
52,786,301 44,189,369 42,706,934 36,082,678

Cost incurred on hehalf of the Federal Government of Nigeria relates to the cost the Group has incurred on behalf of the Federal
Government of Nigeria an the Second Niger Bridge project.

23 Inventories

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018

N 'oo00 N 'ooo N '000 N 'ooo
Raw materials 5,865,083 8,991,275 - -
Finished goods 13,060,120 11,693,800 - -
18,935,112 20,685,075 = N

Maturity analysis:

Current 18,035,112 20,685,075 - -
18,935,112 20,685,075 = =

There were no inventories pledged as security for liabilities. {2018: N1L)
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24 Investments in subsidiaries

Anthority Authority
30 June 3t December
2019 2018
N 'co0 N'ooo
At the beginning of the period 5,116,826 16,085,655
Disposal of subsidiary - (10,968,829)
At the end of ihe period 5,116,826 5,116,826
Investment types:
Investment in equity shares 5,116,826 5,116,826
5,116,826 5,116,826
Maturity analysis:
Noen-current 5,116,826 5,110,826
5,116,826 5,116,826
24.1 Information on subsidiary entities controlled by the Authority
Name of entity Place of % of ownership % of ownership Carrying Carrying
business/ interest interest amount amount
Country of
incorporation 30 Junc 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N 'noo N'voo
NSIA Motorways Investment Company (NMIC) {i) Nigeria 06.99% 69.99% 1,000 1,600
KG Brussels LP (i) UsA 90.97% 96.97% 5,108,826 5,108,826
KG Acquisition I L1.C 754 100% 100% - -
FGF Private Equity Co. Limited (iii) Nigeria 99.99% 99.06% 1,000 1,000
FGF Invesiments Limited (iv) Nigeria 99.95% 96.99% 1,000 1,000
NSIA Agricultire Investnent Compary (v} Nigeria 99.9¢% 95.99% 1,000 1,000
FGF PE Beta Limited (vi) Nigeria 99.99% 99.99% 1,000 1,000
NSIA Property Investment Company Limited (vii) Nigeria 96.69% 99.99% 1,000 1,000
NSIA Power Investment Company Limited (viii) Nigeria 99.99% 99.99% 1,000 1,000
(1\‘1311[;: ;Le;]iﬁ::dl)(a';!opmem and Investment Nigeria 99.96% 99.06% o 000
5:116,8z06 5,116,826

i)NSIA Motorways Investment Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria. The subsidiary was set-up to invest in the
development of roads, bridges, toll plaza and related road transport infrastructure. The Company was incorporated in 2014.

I)KG Brussels LP is a Partnership that holds a portfolio of investments in other private equity investec funds. The General Partner of the
Partnership is KG Acquisition I LLC, which is owned by NSIA. NSIA is a limited partnerin KG Brussels LP, The Company was
incorporated in 2014.

ili)FGF Private Equity Ce. Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary demiciled in Nigeria. The subsidiary was set-up to invest in private
equities. The Company was incorporated in 2015.

Iv)FGF Investments Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria. The subsidiary was set-up to invest in private equities and
other investments. The Company was incorporated in 2015.

v)NAIC is a wholly owned subsidiary of NSIA, domieiled in Nigeria. It was set-up to carry on the business of agricultural investment and
management, investment in the agrieultural land and businesses of all kinds. The Company was incorperated in 2016.

vi)FGF PE Beta Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria. The subsidiary was set-up to invest in private equities. The
Company was incorporated in 20:5.

VIHNSLA Property Envestment Company Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary in investing in and to purchase, acquire, hold, develop,
work and turn to account any land (of any tenure), landed property or real estate of any kind. The Company was incorporated in 2014,

viii} NS1A Power Investment Company Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria, The subsidiary was set-up to invest in
the development of infrastructure related to power including but not limited to gas turbines, transmission lines, and other generation,
transmission and distribution infrastructure and equipment. The Company was incorporated in 2014,
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Information on subsidiary entities controlled by the Authority (Cont'd)

ix)NSIA Healthcare Development and Investment Company Limited is a wholly-ewned subsidiary domiciled in Nigeria. The subsidiary
was established to invest in any company, corporation, authority or body invelved in or any arrangement related to healtheare
infrastructure or healthcare service detivery and/or management. The Company was incorporated in 2014.

The Authority also has indirect interests in the following subsidiaries:

Place of %of % of ownership
business/ ownership interest
Country of interest
incorporation 30 June 31 December
2019 2018
FMCU Advanced Medical Diagnostics Limited (x) Nigeria 90% 90%
AKTH Advanced Medical Diagnostics Limited (xi) Nigeria 90% 0%
NAIC-NPK Limited (xii) Nigeria 100% 100%

x) FMCU Advanced Medical Diagnostics Limited is a limited liability campany established to carry out business as providers of modern
medical pathology laboratory, radiegraphy, and ancillary healtheare services. The Company was incorporated in 2016,

xi} AKTH Advanced Medical Diagnostics Limited is a limited liability company established to carry out business as providers of modern
medical pathology leboratory, radiography, and ancillary healtheare services. The Company was incorporated in 2017.

xii) NAIC-NPK Limited liability company incorporated in 2016. It was cstablished under Nigeria Agrieulture Investment Company (100%
ownership) to establish, run and carry on business as proprietors of fertilizer plants and to manufacture, treat, process, produce, supply
and deal in fertilizers and all substances (natural or artificial) suited to improving the fertility of soil er water,

25 Investments accounted for using the equity method
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position arc as follows;

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'o00
Assaciates and joint ventures 14,216,073 13,647,879 10,014,990 10,614,990
The amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income are as follows:
Associates and joint ventures 568,194 209,260 - -
The below shows a detailed movement of this balance:
Group Group Authority Authority
30Jdune 31 December 30June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N'aoo N'ooo
At the beginning of the period 13,647,879 2,453,380 10,614,990 1,600,490
Additions during the period 10,925,239 - 9,014,500
Share of profit of associate and joint venture 541,761 209,300 - -
Share of fair vatue reserves of associate and joint venture 26,433 59,960 - -
At the end of the period 14,216,073 13,647,870 10,514,990 10,614,900
Maturity analysis:
Non-current 14,216,073 13,047,879 10,614,990 10,614,990

Interests in associates and joint ventures

Set out below are the associates and joint ventures of the Group as at 30 June 2019. The entities listed below have share capital consisting
sofely of urdinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The country of incorporatien or registration is also their principal place of
business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of veting rights held.

Group
Name of company Place of % of % of Carrying Carrying
business/ ownership ownership amount amount
Country of interest interest
incorporation a0 June 31 December goJune 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Investment in associates N "o00 N 'ooo
Nigeria Mortgage Refinance Company 25.1 Nigeria 20.01% 20.91% 2,722,640 2,758,781
{(NMRC)
Family Homes Funds Limited 25.2 Nigeria 49% 49% - -
(FHFL)
Panda Agriculture Operations and 25.9 Mauritius 30% 30% - -
Management Ltd
Pandagric Novum Lid 25.4 Nigeria 30% 30% - -
2,729 640 2,758,781
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Interests in associates and joint ventures (Cont'd)

Group

Name of company Place of % of
business/ ownership
Country of interest
incorporation 30 June

2019

Investment in joint venture

LUTH Advanced Medical Services 25.5 Nigeria 50%

Limited

UFF-NAIC Agriculture Manzgement 25.6 Mauritins 50%

Company (Mauritius) Limited

UFF-NAIC Agricolture Investment 25.7 Mauritius 50%

Company (Mauritius} Limited

Panda Agricultural Properties 25.8 Nigeria 50%

Management Lid

Panda Agricultural Properties 25.9 Mauritius 50%

Management Ltd

Infrastructure Credit Guarantee 25.10 Nigeria 50%

Company Limited

Total investment in joint venture

Total investments in joint ventures and associates

Authority
Name of company Place of % of
business/ ownership
Country of interest
incorporation
30 June
2019
Investment in associates
g}ﬁ;‘% )Mortgage Refinance Company 25.1 Nigeria 20.01%
:l?;?[:}f)]{omes Funds Limited 25,2 Nigeria 49%
ﬁs:;l;g }e\izz;llgge Operations and 25,3 Mauritius 0%
Pandagric Novum Ltd 25.4 Nigeria 25%
Name of company Place of % of
business/ ownership
Country of interest
ncorporation
30 June
2019
Investment in joint venture
Infrastructure Credit Guarantee .
25.10 Nigeria 50%

Company Limited

Total investment in joint ventures and associates
The Authority has indirect investments in joint ventures in the following entities:

UFF-NAIC Agriculiure Management 25.6 Mauritius 50%
Company (Mauritius) Limited

UFF-NAIC Agriculture Investment 25.7 Mauritius 50%
Company (Mauritius) Limited

LUTH Advanced Medical Services 25.5 Nigeria 50%
Limited {LUTH)
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% of
ovnership
interest

31 December
2018

50%
50%
50%
50%
50%

50%

% of
ownership
interest

31 December
2018

20.91%
49%
0%

0%

% of

ownership
interest

31 December
2018

50%

0%
0%

50%

Carrying Carrying
amount amouant
goJune 31 December

2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
500 -
1,009 1,009
1,909,230 1,870,802
9,582,604 9,017,288
11,493,433 10,889,009
14,216,073 13,647,880

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
30June 31 December

2019 2018

N'ooo N'ooo
1,600,000 1,600,000
490 490
1,600,400 1,600,450

Carrying Carrying
amount amouint
30June 31 December

2019 2048

N'ooo N'ooo
9,014,500 9,014,500
9,014,500 9,014,500
10,614,990 10,614,990
1,009 3,052
1,909,230 1,907,188
500 500
1,010,739 1,910,740
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Investment in associates

25.1 Nigeria Mortgage Refinance Company (NMRC)
Nigeria Mortgage Refinance Company (NMRC) is a government business entity and there is no quoted market price available for its
shares. There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's imterest in the associate. Set out below are the summarised financial
information for NMRC which is accounted for using the equity method,

25.2 Family Homes Fund Limited (FHFL)
Family Homes Fund Limited {FIIFL) s an innovative private sectar driven financing solution te Nigeria's housing challenges. An initiative
of the Federal Ministry of Finance and established in September 2016, There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in
the associate.
Set out below are the summarised financial information for FHFL which is accounted for using the equity method.

25.3 Panda Agriculture Operations and Management Ttd
A company limited by shares and incorporated in Mauritius on the 2nd of February 2018 with company number 153361
The company operates and manages all farms, assets and land acquired by Panda Agricultural Properties Management Limited. This
entity is owned by UFF-NAIC Agriculture Investment Company (Mauritius) Limited and Novuin Heldings Ltd - a non-Group entity.
25.4 Pandagric Novum Ltd
A company limited by shares and incorporated in Nigeria on the 16th of November 2017,
The company is currently owned by Panda Agricultural Operations & Management {Mauritius) Ltd and Panda Agricuttural Properties
Management Ltd - a Nigerian entity duly incorporated in Nigeria,
Pandagric Novum Limited has been established to sell, purchase, import, export, take or let or hire or lease, repair, alter, improve, deal in
machinery, equipment, implements, tools, accessories, used for developing, growing, raising, processing, packaging of all kinds of
agricultural products. It can also carry on the businesses of farming, production, harvesting, procurement, grading, pooling, marketing
agriculture and horticulture in all their forms. The company is able to enter into partnerships, joint ventures, coneessions and generally
collaborate with other entities in the development of integrated farms and businesscs.
‘The company currently eperates and manages the farm assets acquired by Panda Agricultural Properties Management Limited.

Investment in joint ventures
25.5 LUTH Advanced Mcdical Services Limited (LUTH)

The company is a limited liability company established to carry out business as providers of modern medical pathology laboratory
services, The Company was incorporated in 2016,

25.6 UFF-NAIC Agriculture Management Company (Mauritius) Limited
A company incorporated in Mauritius on the 8th June 2017 with registration number 147877. This company is a special purpose vehicle
(SPV) company owned by UFF Management (Mauritius} Limited and NSIA Agriculture Investment Company Limited.
kt was established to provide asset management services and investment management and advisery services exchisively to the UFF-NAIC
Agriculture Investment Company (Mauritius) Limited and/aor to cach of the shareholders and;or its affiliates and ancillary activities.

25.7 UFF-NAIC Agriculture Investment Company ( Mauritius) Limited
UFF-NAIC Agriculture Investment Company (Mauritius) Limited was incorporated in Mauritius on the 27th March 2017 with company
number 146100. The company is a joint venture hetween NSIA and Old Mutual African Agricultural Fund. An initial commitment of
USDzsmn from NSIA and Old Murual African Agrienltural Fund has been made with a target of a total commitment size of USDzoomn
from other third parties. Although the funds to the Joint venture are provided by Old Mutual African Agricultural Fund, UFF Management
Limited act as representatives on behalf of Old Mutual.

The fund is currently pursuing farmland and agribusiness investments as well as high technology driven agriculture in the various parts of
Nigeria.

25.8 Panda Agricultural Properties Management Ltd
A company limited by shares and incorporated in Mauritius on the 6th of February 2018 with company number 153425.

The company has been established to set up farms, agricultural land and fixed assets and lease such farms and assets to Panda Operations
& Management.

25.9 Panda Agricultural Properties Management Ltd
A company limited by shares and incorporated in Nigeria on the gth of November 2017,
The company is owned by Panda Agricultural Properties Management {Mauritius) Limited and UFE-NAIC Agriculture Investment
Company {Maurilius) Limited. The company has been established to sell, purchase, import, export, take or let or hire or lease, repair,
alter, improve, deal in machinery, equipment, implements, taols, accessories, used for developing, growing, raising, processing, packaging
of all kinds of agricultural products. It can also carry on the businesses of farming, production, harvesting, procurement, grading, pooling,
marketing agrieulture and horticulture in all their forms.
The company has acquired farm assets from Novum Agric Industries in pursuit of its objectives,

25.10 Infrastructure Credit Guarantee Company Limited (Infracredit)
Infrastructure Credit Guarantee Company Limited (Infracredit), This is a Company jointly owned with African Finance Coporation (AFC),
The company provides local currency guarantees to enhance the credit quality of debt instruments issued to finance creditworthy
infrastrueture assets in Nigeria that conform with its eligibility criteria. The Company was incorporated in 2016. On 19 December 2018
the Authority lost controf due to additional investment made in Infracredit by African Finance Coporation (AFC), this investment by AFC
diluted the investment in Infracredit to an "investment in Joint venture".
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Summarised financial information associates

Set out below are the financial information of the associates and joint ventures of the Group as at 30 June 2019, which, in the opinion of
the directors, are material to the Group.

NMRC FHFL
3o June 31 December g0 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 018

N'ooo N'ooo N 'o00 N'ooo
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Interest income 4,844,363 7,079,510 27,671 155,001
nterest expense (2,189,337) (3,177,341) B -
Other income 7,065 6,741 396,012 -
Net write back of financial assets - 6,981 - -
Depreciation and amartisation (89,993 (177,083) (1,257) (633)
Personne] expenses (403,625} (819,333) (209,201) (102,777)
Operating expenses {514.149} (983,979) (216,905) (175,216)
Profit before tax 1,654,324 1,935,496 (3,740) (123,625}
Income tax (92,825) (94,387) - -
Profit/(loss) for the period 1,501,499 1,841,109 (3,740) (123,625)
Other comprehensive income - {92,105} & g
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 1,561,499 1,749,004 (3,740} (123,625)
Summarised statement of financial position

NMRC FHFL
3oJune 31 December go June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018

N'ooo N 'ooo N 'oo0 N'ooo
Cash and cash equivalents 5,977,513 0,505,444 10,554,698 12,620,971
Investment securities 064,164,642 62,057,658 - -
Inventories - - 9,736,787 8,789,834
Other assets 152,202 142,433 189,778 95,494
Investment properties B B 1,259,960
Praperty and equipment 554,938 545,727 1,319,009 2,245
Intangible asscts 10,002 40,620 646 1468
Total assets 70,879,477 60,201,882 21,800,078 22,768,878
Other liabilities 810,592 662,702 20,067,767 21,201,607
Tax liabilities 92,512 93,917 411,853 365,737
Borrowings 37,598,419 37,598,419 1,500,000 1,500,000
Debt securities issued 17,501,090 17,743,249 - -
Total labilities 56,002,613 56,098,287 21,979,620 23,067,434
Capital and reserves
Share capital 2,125,444 2,125,444 1,000 1,000
Share premium 5,025,233 5,925,231 - -
Retained earnings 4,590,111 3,497,055 (179,642} (299,557}
Statutory reserves 2,072,576 1,604,080 - -
Fair value reserves 153,500 41,785 - -
Total equity 14,876,864 13,193,595 (178,642) (298,557)
Total liabilities and equity 70,879,477 69,201,882 21,800,978 22,768,877

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of its interest in NMRC and FHFL

NMRC FHFL

30June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018

N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo
Net assets of associatefjoint ventare 14,876,864 13,193,505 (178,642) (208,557)
Group share of net assets 3.110,752 2,758,781 (87,535) (146,293)
Carrying value of associate 3,110,752 2,768,781 . -
Difference = = {87,535} {146,293)
Share of losses not recognised - - 87,535 146,203
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Summarised financial information of joint ventures

Set out below are the financial information of the joint ventures of the Group as at 30 June 2019, which, in the opinion of the directors, are
material to the Group.

Infracredit LUTH
30 June 3t December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N 'o00 N'owo
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Interest and investment income 1,178,017 524,185 - -
Net foreign exchange gain/loss (168,194) 79130 - -
Guarantee fee income 219,394 340,000 - -
Other income - 34,226 - 350
Gurantee fee expense (38,999) (78,070} - -
Interest expense (401,795)
Impairment loss on financial assets - {47,436) - -
Operating expenses (358,022) (682,398) (284,304} -
Profit before tax 430,501 169,598 (284,304) 350
Income tax - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the period 430,501 169,598 (284,304) 350
Total comprehensive income 430,501 169,508 {z284,304) 350
Infracredit LUTH
s0June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N 'oco N'ooo N ‘o000 N 'ooo
Summarised statement of financial position T T -
Cash and cash equivalents 320,740 13,763,541 - -
Investment securities 31,004,038 17,413,426 - -
Other assets 1,883,526 913,058 1,000 1,000
Property and equipment 105,384 122,378 2,767,106 1,675,620
Intargible assets 1,768 2,133 - -
Total assets 33:315.456  32,235436 2,768,106 1,676,620
Other liabilities 2,116,143 1,756,380 3,057,920 1,776,165
Debt capital 13,064,287 12,813,600 - -
Total Habilities 15,180,430 14,570,079 3,057,920 1,776,165
Capital and reserves
Ordinary share capital 1,983,100 1,083,190 1,000 1,000
Preference shares capital 16,045,810 16,045,810 - -
Retained carnings 106,026 (363,043) (290,814) (100,545)
Total equity 18,135,026 17,665,357 (289,814) (99,545)
Total liabilities and equity 33,315,456 32,235,436 2,768,106 1,676,620
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the cartying amount of its interest in LUTH
Infracredit LUTH
30 June 31 December g0 Junc 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N 'o00 N 'oo0
Net assets of associate/joint venture 18,135,026 17,605,357 (289,814) (99,545)
Group share of net assets 9,067,513 8,832,679 (289,814) (99,545)
Carrying value of assaciate 9,067,513 8,832,679 S &
Difference - = (289,814} (99,545)
Share of losses not recognised - - 289,814 99,545
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26 Property and equipment

Group Furniture Motor  Computer Office  Assets under Total
and fittings vehicles  equipment equipment  construction

N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N 000 N'ooo
Cost
As at 1 January 2018 116,382 182,523 193,249 21,889 16,113,745 16,627,788
Additions 37,600 207,322 37,048 205 1,343,974 1,626,239
T.0ss of control in subsidiary (38,951) (55,000) (54,072) (20,113) . (169,026)
Transfer of asset - - - - {16,113,745) (16,113,745)
As at 31 December 2018 115,031 934,845 175,325 2,071 1,243,974 1,971,246
As at 1 January 2019 115,031 334,845 175,325 2,071 1,343,974 1,071,246
Additions 22,394 116,211 595 - 88,000 230,200

Transfer ol asset - " - = E -
As at 30 Junc 2019 137,425 454,056 V75,920 2,071 1,431,974 2,201,446

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2018 77,431 126,674 112,123 5,000 - 321,228
Loss of control in subsidiary {10,303) (4,526) {2,611) (4,680) - (22,120)
Charge for the year 0,170 24,068 21,617 267 - 55122
As at 31 December 2018 o 7_@98 143:216 131,129 587 - 354,230
As at 1 January 2019 76,298 146,216 131,120 587 - 354,230
Charge for the period 4,910 63,673 12,538 124 81,245
As at 30 June 2019 - 81,208 209,889 143,667 711 . 435,475
Catrying armoutit
As at 3o June 2019 56,217 244,167 32,253 1,360 ,431,974 1,765,071
As at 31 December 2018 38,793 188,629 44,196 1,484 1,343,874 1,617,016

Property and equipment (cont'd)

Authority Furniture Motor Computer Office Total
and fittings vehicles equipment cquipment

N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N 'ooo
Cost
As at 1 January 2018 77431 113,739 138,278 1,776 331,224
Additions 97,600 207,322 97,048 95 282,265
As at 31 December 2018 115,331 321,061 175,326 2,071 613,480
As at 1 January 2019 115,031 321,061 175,326 2,071 613,489
Additions 22,204 119,211 504 - 142,109
As at 30 June 2019 137,425 440,272 175,020 2,071 755,688

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 January 2018 70,128 106,904 107,065 1,320 285,417
Charge for the year 9,170 24,068 21,617 267 55,122
Disposals - - g 2 -
As at 31 December 2018 T 79,208 130,972 128,682 1,587 340,530
As at 1 January 2019 79,208 130,972 128,682 1,587 340,530
Charge for the period 4,910 63,580 12,538 124 B1,152
As at 30 June 2019 84,208 194,552 141,220 1,711 425,691
Carrying amount

As al 30 Juhe 2019 53,217 245,720 34,700 360 333,997
As at 31 December 2018 35,733 190,089 46,644 484 272,050
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27

28

28,

-

28.2

Intangible assets
Software - 30 June 2019
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2019
Additions
Balance at 30 June 2019
Amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2019
Charge for the period
Balance at 30 June 2019
Carrying amount
Balance at 30 June 2019

Software - 31 December 2018
Cost

Balance at 1 January 2018
Additions

Loss of control in subsidiary
Balance at 31 December 2018
Amortisation

Balance at 1 January 2018 -

Charge for the period
Balance at 31 December 2018
Carrying amount

Balance at 31 December 2018

Other liabilities

Financial liability:

Trade payables

Intercompany payables

Other payables

Payables to the Federal Government of Nigeria
in respect of the Second Niger Bridge (28.1)

Deferred income on RSSF borrowing (28.2)

Non financial liability:

Accruals

Tax liabilities

Payables to the Federal Government of Nigeria
in respect of the Second Niger Bridge (28.1)

Maturity analysis:
Current
Non-current

Group Authority

N'o00 N'ooo

37,558 37:396

30,085 30,085

67,643 67,481

24,665 24,503

24,665 24,503

42,978 42,978

Group Authority

N'c00 N'0o00

25,803 24,503

12,893 12,893

(1,138) -

37.558 37,396

24,602 24,440
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24,665 24,503

12,803 12,893

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N 'oo0 N'ooo N 'ooo

2,814,489 1,733,962 2,361,740 1,520,494

. - 8,528,854 1,501,131

31,543,308 18,756,444 15,267,207 15.456,623

2,304,634 2,181,094 ’ '

7,024,481 8,951,162 - -
1,856,765 284,034 839,398

72,603 237,608 - 347,267

16,113,745 16,113,745 - -

62,420,115 48,258,049 26,997,199 18,915,515

41,270,814 22,793,115 26,097,199 18,915,515

21,149,301 25,634,934 - -

62,420,115 48,258,049 26,997,199 18,915,515

This represents the total amount received from the Federal Government of Nigeria in respeet of the construction of the Sceond Niger
Bridge project. The total amount of expenses incurred to date from amount has been included in other assets and shown as "cost
incurred on behalf of FGN in respect of Second Niger Bridge", while the unspent portion is included in cash and bank balances.

Deferred income on Real Sector Support Facility (RSSF) borrowing relates to the deferred income on the below market rate loan
obtained from United Bank for Africa Plc and Union Bank of Nigeria Ple, The loans were secured for the Federal Government of
Nigeria's Presidential Fertilizer Initiative scheme under the the Central Bank of Nigeria's Real Sector Support Facility(RSSF) scheme.
The fair value of the grant was recognized initially on the grant date and subsequently amortized on a straight line basis over the tenor
of theloan, There were no unfulfilled conditions relating to the grant as at the reporting date, The total grant to date is Ngsbillion. An
interest expense of N1.945billion relating to this facility has been disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income for the period

ended June 2019. See note 29,1 for additional details.
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29.1

30

30.1

zo0.2

Borrowings

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Real Sector Support Facility (RSSF) (29.1)

Group Group Authority Authority

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018

N'eooo N 'goo N'soo N'o0o0
24,875,519 26,052,673 - .
24,875,519 26,052,673 - -

The amount borrowed was provided by the Central Bank of Nigeria to NAIC-NPK {a subsidiary of the Group) to finance the Presidential
Fertilizer Initiative for which the Authority initially provided stop-gap financing. A total amount of N40 billion was approved by the
Central Bank of Nigeria, however, the company has drawn down N35 billion at the end of the reporting period. The tenor of the loan is
6 years and interest rate is at a below market rate of 5%, This borrowing will be repaid from the proceeds of fertilizer sale. The deferred
income element of N7.6billion {2018: N&,5hillion) is showr in Note 28. The income recognised during the year was N1.326billion, this

is shown is Note 17.

Maturity analysis:
Current
Non-current

Equity and reserves

Contribution by Government
Retained carnings
Fair value reserve

Fareign currency translation reserve
Non-controlling interest

Contribution by Government

Opening balance

There were no additional contributions made during the period.

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Adjustment to opening balance as a result of

IFRS 9 adoption

Reclassification from fair value and currency
reserves as a result of adoption of IFRS ¢

Adjusted opening balance
Profit for the period

4,315,837 3,219,661 - -
20,559,682 22 833,012 -
24,875,519 26,052,673 - N
Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 Decemhber
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N 'ooo N'ooo
280,662,500 280,662,500 280,662,500 280,662,500
278,084,192 256,550,342 277,735,848 253,690,496
3,489,608 1,786,620 3,930,840 2,245,070
5,188,740 4.382,101 - =
5.805 5,823 i -
567,430,845 543,387,386 562,329,188 536,598,066
Group Greup Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ovo
280,662,500 280,662,500 280,662,500 280,662,500
280,662,500 280,662,500 280,662,500 280,662,500
Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'oo0 N'000 N '000 N'oco
255,581,343 170,402,086 253,690,496 170,859,498
- (1,786,670} : (249,094)
- 41,656,465 B 41,043,623
255,581,343 210,271,881 253,600,496 211,654,027
22,502,849 45,309,462 24,045,352 42,036,469
278,084,192 255,581,343 277,735,848 253,690,496
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30.3

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve includes the net eumulative change in the fair value of cquity instruments. The amounts are never transferred to
profit or loss under IFRS ¢ even when the investinents are derecognised,

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
_ N'ooo N'oco N 'coo N'coo
Opening balance 1,786,620 43,190,981 2,245,070 43,497,310
in value of fi ial red at
gg?)ncg]e 1m value of financial assets measu a 1,676,555 192,144 1,685,7?0 (208,617)
Reclassification to retained earnings as a result
of adoption of IFRS 9 . (41,656,465} - (41,043,623}
Share of change in value of financial assets 64" 6
measured at FVOCI - (Associates) 26433 5,900 B )
3,489,608 1,786,620 3,930,840 2,245,070
30.4 Foreign currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve inchides the net cumulative change in the forcign gains or (losses} arising from translation of the
financial statements of subsidiaries with US Dollars as functional currency info the Group’s presentation currency. The amounts
presented within other comprehensive income are the gross amounts as the companies are exempted from income taxes.

Group Group
30 June 31 December
2019 2018

N 'oo0 N 'o00
Opening balance 5,351,100 6,801,720
Adjustment to opening balance as a result of IFRS g adoption - (225,075)
Restated opening balance 5,351,100 6,576,651
Exchange differences arising during the period {162,360) (1,225,551)
5,188,740 5,351,100

30.5 Non-controlling interest (NCI)

Group Group
30 June 31 December
2019 2018

N'ooo N'ooo
Opening balance 5.823 4,730
Profit /{loss) attributable to NCI (151} Bg3
Fair value changes (908} (846)
Currency translation differences 1,041 1,046
5,805 5,823

21

Capital management

The Group is to maintain a sirong eapital base in order to retain the confidence of the Nigerian people and the market with a bid to
sustain future developments for the business, Management menitors the return on capital hy reviewing monthly performance returns
from investment managers.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of adjusted net debt to adjusted equity. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
liabilities, comprising payables to counterpartics and other obligations, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all
components of equity.

The Group's adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 30 June 2019 was as follows:

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
N'oco N'oo00 N 'ooo N'ooo0
Total liabilities 87,205,634 74,310,722 26,997,199 18,015,515
Less: cash and eash equivalents 78,138,297 76,154,290 69,415,103 61,777,335
Net surplus/(deficit) 9,157,337 (1,843,508) (42,417,904) (42,861,820)
Total equity 567,430,845 543,387,386 562,329,188 536,598,066
Adjusted equity 567,430,845 543,387,386 562,329,188 536,598,066
Net surplus to adjusted equity ratio 2% 0% -8% -8%
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Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial or operational decisions. NSIA is the ultimate parent of the Group,

As disclosed in the investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture notes, FMCU Advanced Medical Diagnosties Ltd,
AKTH Advanced Medical Diagnostics Limited are sub-subsidiaries of the Authority and are related parties in accordance with the
applicable standards.

NMRC, FHFL, Panda Agricultural Properties Management{Mauritius) Limited and Pandagric Novum Limited are associates of
the Authority.

UFF-NAIC Management Company {Mauritius) Limited, UFF-NAIC Agriculture Investment Company (Mauritius) Limited, Panda
Agricultural Properties Management Ltd, Panda Agricultural Properties Management (Mauritius) Limited, LUTH Advanced
Medical Services Ltd and Infrastructure Credit Guarantec Company Limited (INFRACREDIT) are jointly controlled by other
entities and are therefore also related parties.

The following are the balances with the Federal Goverment of Nigeria during the period:

Group Group
30 June 31 December
2019 2018
N'ooo N'o00
Payables to the Federal Government of Nigeria in respect of the Second Niger Bridge 18,508,379 18,294,839
Cost incurred on behalf of the Federal Government of Nigeria in respect of Second T 16,113,745

Niger Bridge.

Compensation of key management personnel

The Authority’s key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related parties for
disclosure purposes. The definition of key management includes close members of family of key personnel and any entity over
which key management exercise control. The members of the board of the Authority did not hold any shares in the Authority
during or as at the end of the period. The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

Directors' remuneration and expenses: Group Group
30 June 30 June
2019 2018
N 'ooo N'oco
Executive compensation 478,265 658,421
Non-executive directors fees and other benefits 25,000 25,000
Defined contribution plan 18,067 29,851
522,232 713,272
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Balances with subsidiarics
The Authaority has the following receivables from the underlisted subsidiaries as at the reporting date:

Type of interests 30 June 31 December
2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
NSIA Motorways Investments Company Subsidiary 604,224 604,224
KG Brussels L.P. Subsidiary - -
NSIA Property Investment Co. Limited Subsidiary 1,743,385 1,743,385
NSIA Power Investment Co. Limited Subsidiary 8o0 8c0
NSIA Healtheare Development and Investment Co. Limited Subsidiary 014,128 573,504
FGK Private Equity Co. Limited Subsidiary 7,373,869 4,586,172
FFGI P. L. Beta Limited Subsidiary 363,405 231,542
FGF Investment Limited Subsidiary 4,352,860 2,656,186
NSIA Agriculture [nvestment Company Subsidiary 3,083,208 3,983,208
FMCU Advanced Medical Diagnostics Limited Sub-subsidiary 787,191 561,455
AKTH Advanced Medical Diagnosties Limited Sub-subsidiary 531,182 271,278
NAJIC-NPK Limited Sub-subsidiary 15,511,174 15,144,678
35,865,426 30,346,432
The Authority has the following payables to the underlisted subsidiaries as at the reporting date:
Type of interests 30 June 31 December
2019 2018
N'oo0 N'ooo
NSIA Motorways Investments Company Subsidiary 1,000 1,000
NSIA Property Investment Co. Limited Subsidiary Subsidiary 1,000 1,000
NSIA Healtheare Development and Investment Co. Limiied Subsidiary 1,000 1,000
FGF Private Equity Co. Limited Subsidiary 1,000 1,000
FGF P, E. Beta Limited Subsidiary 1,000 1,000
NAIC-NPK Limited Sub-subsidiary 8,380,255 1,489,479
FGF Investment Limited Subsidiary 75,452 75,452
NSIA Agriculture Investment Company Subsidiary 67,147 20,200
NSIA Power Investment Co. Limited Subsidiary 1,000 1,000
8,528,854 1,591,131

The Authority has the following payables to the underlisted associates and joint ventures as at the reporting date:

Type of interests 30 June 31 December

2019 2018
N'oo0 N'ooo
LUTH Advanced Medical Services Limited Joint venture 3,057,420 1,775,665
Infrastructure Credit Guarantee Company Limited Joint venture 349,087 245,324
3,406,507 2,020,989

During the peried ended, there were no related party transaction relating to the following:
- Provisions for doubtful debis related to the amount of outstanding balances
- Expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.
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33.2

Other contracts

The investment activities of the three separate funds established by the Authority were managed by various investment managers
engaged during the period.

Stabilisation fund

The Authority engaged the following investment managers through its global custodian JP Morgan for the management of the
Stabilisation lund. The details of the investment managers as of period end are:

UBS Global Asset Management (UK) LTD
Engagement and Service

The Authority engaged UBS Global Asset Management Lid as its agent and delegate to manage the investment and reinvestment
of certain monies and assets, deposited from time to time by the Authority and held by JP Morgan. UBS Global Assct Management
Company provides the Authority with reports containing the transactions, valuations and portfolio performance of the account on
a monthly, quarterly and annual basis.

Smith Grahain & Co
Fngagement and Service

Smith Graham provides investment management services on behalf of NSIA within the parameters of the investment guidelines
that include a discretionary authority to make investments in the portfolio; investing in U.S treasury, agencies, commercial
papers, money market funds. effective duration of the portfolio should not exceed 120 days; Insight into fixed income financial
market conditions. Periodic reports communicated to the Authority include information on holdings, transactions, executive
summary and economic outlook.

Income Research + Management (IR+M)

IR+M is a privately-owned, independent, fixed income investment management firm that provides investment management
services to the Authority, Their investment investment philosophy and process arc based on our belief that careful sceurity
selection and active risk management provide superior results over the long-term. They provide investment management services
for investments in US fixed income securities in investment opportunities across the corporate, securitized, government, and
municipal sectors.

Future Generations Fund
Hedge fund
The hedge fund managers in which the Future Generations Fund is invested as at period end are stated below:
1. JHL Capital Group LLP
2, Blue Mountain Capital Management
3. Arbiter Offshore Ltd
4. AQR Capital Management
5. The Canyon Value Realisation Fund (Cayman) Ltd, CNPG
6. Palestra Capital
7. Brasidas Asia
8. Alpstone Global Macro Fund
9. Holocene Advisors Offshore Fund Lid

Long Only Equity Managers
The long only equity managers in which the Future Generations Fund is invested as at period end are stated below:
1. Cevian Capital UK LLP

2. Edgbaston Investment Partners

3- Somerset Capital Management LLP
4. Marathon Asset Management LLP
5. Goldman Sachs

6. Chieftain Capital

7. Prince Street Institutional Lid

8. Prince Street Opportunities Ltd

9. Prince Street Offshore

10. RWC
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Private equity partners

The private equity fund in which the Future Generations Fund is invested as at period end are stated below:
1. Z Capital Pariners

2, Healtheare Royalty Partners

3. FGF Xenon Private Fquity

4. Helics Investment Partners

5. Africa Capital Alliance

6. Actis Capital

7. Abraaj Growth Markets Health Fund L.P
8. Akina Euro Choice

9. Reverenee Capital Fund

33.3 Nigeria Infrastructure Fund
Private equity pariners
The private equity fund and investments in which the Infrastructure Fund invested as at period end is stated below:
1. Fund for Agricultural Finance in Nigeria (FAFIN)
2. Nigeria Infracstruture Debt Fund

34.4 Custodians
Engagement and Service
The Authority engaged JP Morgan Chase & Co (global custodian) and Stanbie IBTC Bank Limited {local custodian) to provide
custody services, as well as accounting, performance and compliance services to capital managed by the Authority, The custodians
provide reports to the Authority on the performance of the capitat custodied by it on a monthly basis.

The investment management fees paid to the investment fund managers, global and local custodians has heen disclosed on the
income statement.

34 Commitments

Capital conunitments
The Authority’s unfunded commitments with private equity fund managers are as follows:
Capital commitments - US$: Naira equivalent
Authority Authority Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2015 2018 2019 2018
$ '000 $'o00 N '000 N'oo0
HealthCare Rovalty Partners (HCRP) 25,125 8,018 8,164,975 2,005,850
ZCapital Partners 11,820 4,993 3,841,500 1,622,725
Capital Alliance Private Equity Fund "CAPE
IV‘? e 4,787 7,664 L555,775 2,490,800
Fund for Agricultural Finance in Nigeria i 3 62.8
(FAFIN)} 4,50 4,859 1,402,825 1,579,175
Helios Investors 730 2,306 237,250 749,450
Reverence Capital Partners Opportunitics 11.r82 6
Fund I, L.P. o5 - 3,764,150 B
CardinalStone Capital Advisers Growth Fund
L.P. 4,916 . 1,597,700 -
Abraaj Growth Markets Health Fund L.P 4,300 3,567 1,397,500 1,159,275
Actis Africa Real Ustate 5,737 8,511 1,864,525 2,766,075
Total 73,496 30,018 23,886,200 12,673,350
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Capital commitments - Euro:

Authority Authority Authority Authority
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Euro '000 Euro'occo N'000 N 'ooo
Xenon Private Equity 139 2,035 118,311 1,029,481
Akina Euro Choice Secondary 11 L.P. 14,933 - 5,211,017 =
Total 15,272 2,935 5,329,928 1,029,481
Total Authority's capital commitments 29,216,128 14,002,831

Other Group members unfunded commitments with private equity fund managers are as follows:

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 20618
$'000 % '000 N 'ooo N '000
RMB WestPort Real Estate Development 62 848 . 6
Fund I 1P 4.4 4,84 1,450,150 1,575,600
Synergy Private Equity Fund LP 7,104 146 2,308,800 47,450
Verod Capital 177 1,964 57,525 638,300
Falko Regional Aircraft Opportunities Fund 16,310 5,557 5,300,750 1,806,025
Whitehorse Liquidity Partners (Offshore) 11 1,803,100
LE 5,548 : :
Fortress Investment Fund IV, L,P, 133 133 43,225 43,225
Fortress Investment Fund V, L.P. 38 38 12,350 12,350
Fortress Investment Fund V Coinvestment,
LP, 46 46 14,950 14,950
Fortress Investment Fund IV Coinvestment,
LP. 899 - 292,175 -
H.LG. Bayside Opportunity Fund, L.P, 285 163 92,625 52,975
Marlin Equity, L.P. 281 287 91,325 93,275
Marlin Equity II, L.P. 600 635 195,000 206,375
OCM Opportunities Fund IVh, L.P. 5,738 1,864,850
OCM Opportunities Fund V1b, L.P. 625 625 203,125 203,125
Cerberus Institutional Partners, L.P. Series
Four 1148 1,148 373,100 373,100
Total 43,394 15,590 14,103,050 5,066,750
Total Group capital commitment 43,316,178 19,060,581

As disclosed above, the Group has committed to provide eapital to various collective investment vehicles. The total of these
commitments at the statement of financial position date is US$116.89million/N38billion and Euro 15.3million/N5.3billion (2018:
US$55.5 million/N118 billion and Euro 2.9 million/N1.02 billion). The Group’s commitment obligations, being capital calls, are
set out in the various underlying subscription documents. Whilst the actual timing of the capitat calls to be made by the managers
of these vehicles is uncertain, as it is dependent on the managers sourcing suitable investment opportunities, the Group has
recorded the commitments as heing current in aceordance with the underlying legal documents. The Group has appropriate
liquidity planning in place to ensure a suitable allocation of resources will be available to cover these future commitments of

capital.
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Other fiduciary activities

The Authority performs the following fiduciary activities:

a) The Authority holds shares in Development Bank of Nigeria (DBN) in irust for the Federal Government of Nigeria (FGN). The
shares are valued at N8 billion, which represents 20% of the shareholding of the DBN. The Ministry of Finance has mandated the
Authority to guide DBN towards the achicvement of its organjsational goals. The Authority is expected to remit all dividends
received from DBN within 30 days and obtain prior consent from the FGN before the disposal, transfer or otherwise change of
ownership of the shares. There wete no dividends paid by DBN in the current period.

b) The Authority provides investment management and custody services to the Debt Management Office {DMOY} which involve the
Authority making allocation, purchase and sale decisions in relation to a wide range of financial instruments and investments.
Those assets and income that are held in a fiduciary capacity arc not included in these financial stalements as they are not assets
of the Authority, The fees and commissions which relates mainly to these investment management transactions and other
fiduciary activity fees are recognised under other income in the statement of comprehensive income as the related services being
provided are performed.

The sum of USD200 million ("the Funds™ was received from the Debt Management Office ("DMOQ") under an Investment
Management Agreement ("the Agreement"). NSIA acts as a manager of the Funds. The agreement provides for the Authority to
invest the Funds in gas, power and other related projects. Consideration is payable to the Authority after certain milestones have
been met and the customers’ share of return has been paid. The fair value of the Managed Funds as at 30 June 2019 stood at
USD123.5 million (2018:USD122.6 million).

c) A total sum of N17.801 billion have been reccived from the Federal Government Stabilization Account via the Office of the
Accountant General of the Federation ("OAGF"). NSIA is to act as a manager to the fund with a mandate to invest the funds in line
with the investment policies of the Stabilization Fund of the Authority. The fair value of the Fund as at 30 June 2019 was N28.138
billion (2018: N19.520 billion)

Tk oomete angd liabilities of the Funds have been excluded from these financial statements as they are not assets and

liabilitics of the Au.l.."ity.

d) The Presidential Infrastructi -c Development Fund (PIDE), is being managed by the Nigeria Sovereign Investment Authority
(NSIA), and invested specificall, i critical road and power projects across the country.

This initiative aims to climinate the risks of project funding, cosl variation and completion that have plagucd the development of
the nation’s critical infrastructure assets — such as the 2nd Niger Bridge, Lagos to Ibadan Expressway, Fast—West Road, Abuja to
Kano Road, Mambilla Hydroelectric Power — over the last few decades. The fair value of the managed Fund as at 30 June 2019
was [T8D688.799million. There was no income earned on the management of the funds during the period.

Events after the reporting peried
The President of the Federal Republic of Nigeria, President Mubammadu Buhari approved the disbursement of additional funding
with respect to PIDF amounting to NgoBn. On 2nd October 2019 this amount was received by the Authority.

The PIDF initiative aims to eliminate the risks of project funding, cost variation and completion that have plagued the
development of the nation’s critical infrastructure assets — such as the 2nd Niger Bridge, Lagos to Ibadan Expressway,

Fast—West Road, Abuja to Kano Road, Mambilla Hydroelectric Power — over the last few decades. This fund is eurrently being
managed by the Authority. There wasno income earned on the management of the funds during the period.

Other than the above, there were no events that had impact on the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
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Value added statement

Group Group Authority Authority
30 June 31 Pecember 30 June 31 December
2019 2018 2019 z018
N'ooo % N 'ooo % N'ooo % N '‘coo %
Revenue 42,088,323 73,524,334 25,003,074 45,482,083
Adminisltalive expenses {21,474,177) (39,173,279) (1.867,419) (4,474,004)
(Lacal and foreign)
Other non-operating income 1.888 552 1.6
,888, ,614,558 ,697 1,025,360
{Local and foreign) . i i
Value added 22,502,608 100% 45,065,613 100% 24,045,352 100% 42,036,460 100%
Applied as follows:
To pay employees
Salaries and other personnel cost 897,273 4.0% 1,927,726  4.2% 500,748 2.1% 1,927,727  4.6%
Maintenance of assets
Depreciation and ammortization 81,245 0.4% 55,185 0.1% 57,614 0.2% 55,185 0.1%
To pay government
Taxation 72,603 0.3% 210,461  0.5% 0% 0%
Retained for growth and expansion
Profit/(loss) for the year 21,451,487  95.3% 43,763,241 95.2% 23,477,990 _ 97.7% 40,053,557 95.3%
22,502,008 100% 45,065,013  100% 24,045,352 100% 42,036,460 100%

Value added is the wealth created by the efforts of the Authority and its employces and its alloeation between employees, sharcholders, goveriment and

re-investment for the future ercation of further wealth.
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Five Year Financial Summary

Group
Staterment of financinl position

Asset

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities

Other asscts

Inventories

Investment in associale and joint ventures
Praperty and equipment

Intangible assets

Total assels

Liahilities

Qther liabilities

Borrowings

Total liabilitics

Equity and reserves
Contribution by Government
Retained earning

Fair value reserves

Currency translation reserves

Tolal equity and amount atiributable to equity

contribulors (Government)
Non-controlling interests
Taotal equity

Total equity and liabilities
Grovup

Slotement of comprehensive income

Investment and Interesl income

InLerest income on instruzment measured at FVTPL

Net gain on financial assets
Net forelgn exchange gains
Total operating income

Investment management fees
Glolral and local custodian fees

Total investment management & custodian fees

Impairment charges on financial assets
‘l'otal operating profit

Revenue from infrastructure subsidiaries investments
Expense from infrasiructure subsidiaries investments
Loss from infrastructure subsidiaries investments

Other income
Total other income

Operating and administrative expenses

Total aperating and adminisirative expenses

Interest expense
Share of prefit of investments in associates
Profit/(loss) hefore tax

Taxatien
Profil for the period

Other comprehensive income:

Tiems that may be subsequently reclassified te

profitandloss

Movement in fair value reserves
Net change in fair value

Currency translation differences

Share of other comprehensive income of investments in

associate

Other comprehensive lncome for the period

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period

3o Junezo19 31 December 2018 31 Decemnber 2087 31 December 2016 31 December zons
N'oco N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'oco
78,138,297 76,154,290 148,267,906 37,983,532 48,920,539
488,841,747 461,391,586 240,822,688 164,382,547 117,746,679
52,786,301 44,189,369 4,698,044 1,472,508 4,765,933
18,935,112 20,685,075 - 5 N
14,216,073 13,647,879 1,957.853 2,129,600 1,616,354
1765971 1,617,016 16,187,064 7,700,860 3,772,873
42,978 12,893 621 5,739 12,168
654,726,479 617,608,108 420,934,176 213.674,7806 177,838,556
62,420,105 48,258,049 24,089,561 15,788,509 6,310,289
24,875,519 26,052,673 S 2 -
87,295,634 74,310,722 24,089,561 15,788,509 6,310,289
280,662,500 280,662,500 204,375,000 155,250,800 155,250,000
278,484,192 255,581,343 147.845.348 17,466,251 5.601,084
3,489,608 1,786,620 36,661,142 23,513,074 10,470,202
5,188,740 5:451,100 7,958,502 1,653,719 116,981
567,425,040 543,381,503 196,839,992 197,883,064 171,548,267
5.805 5,823 4,623 3,213 -
567,430,845 543,387,386 396,844,015 197,886,277 171,528,267
654,726,479 617,608,108 420,034,170 213,674,786 177,838,556
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 530 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'aoo N'ooo
16,452,923 20,077,512 7,072,381 46,995,103 3,028,907
504,020 163,065 - = -
6,860,771 (7,173.656) (3,801,788} - -
1,749,724 1,649,915 9,843,543 65,309,493 8,635,443
25,567,438 14,716,836 13,114,136 12,304,596 11,604,350
(555,820) (530,721) [400,154) (266,014) (218,006}
131,762) (51,002) (19,702} (33,771) (57,413}
(687,582) (581,723} (419,856) (299,785) (275,419)
yg— 1,361,983 (7,081,521} e i, sy N i
20,241,839 7,053,592 12,094,280 112,004,811 11,388,931
16,520,885 14,159,385 17,972,645 " "
(17,980,410 {20,719,146) (21,049,031 - -
(1,459,525 (6,559,761) (3,076,386) = o
1,346,791 5204805 23,531 = -
1,346,791 5,204,805 23,531 N -
(2,150,267) {1,976,541) {1,799,938) 1896,525) (1,536,983)
(2,150,267) 1,976,541) {1,799,938) {896.525) (1,536,983}
(1,945,208) (827,203} o b =
541,761 154,772 31,080 21,978 12,381
22,575,391 3,049,664 7,872,567 111,130,264 9,864,329
(72,693} {112,292) o {214} (22,205)
22,502,698 2,937,432 7,872,567 111,130,050 9,842,124
1,675,647 1,170,084 3,640,550 (452,827) 20357413
(162,360) (3,730,231) 252,122 3,708,210 -
26,433 19,197 31,865 29,85] -
1,539,720 (2,540,950) 3,924,537 3,285,236 20,357,443
24,042,418 206,482 11,797,104 114,415,286 304109,537
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Authorily

Statement of financial position

Asset

Cash and cash equivalenis

Investment securities

Other assets

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in associale and jainl venlures
Properly and equipment

Inlangible agsets

Total assets

Liahilities

Other liabililies

Borrowings

Total liabilities

Equity and reserves
Contribution by Government
Retained earning

Fair value reserves

Currency translation reserves

Total equily and amount atlribulable 1o equity contributors
{Government}

Total equity
Total equity and liabilitics

Authority

Stav t of compret ive income

Tovestment and Inlerest income

Interest income on instrumnet measured at FYTPL
Net gain on financial assets

Net foreign exchange gains

Tolal eperating income

Invesiment management fees

Locat custodian fees

Foreign custodian fees

Total investment management & custodian fees
Impairment Charges on Financial assets

Total aperating profit

Other income

Total other income

Operating and administrative expenses

Total vperaling and administrative expenses
Share of profit of Investments in associates
Profithefore tax

Taxation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Ilems that may be subsequently reclassified t¢ profit and
loss

Movement in fair value reserves
Net change in fair value
Other comprehensive income for the period

Total comprehensive income for the period

30 June 30 June s 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 31 December zo1y 20106 2015
N'ooo N'ooo N'oco N'ooo N'ooo
69,415,103 61,777,335 141,076,852 32,013,468 43,115,273
461,085,559 441,635,909 234,132,773 154,152,447 108,471,837
42,706,934 36,082,678 7,355,693 1,844,603 4,769,621
5,116,826 5,116,826 7,006,155 7,066,155 11,994,482
10,614,590 10,614,99¢ 1,600,000 1,600,600 1,600,000
333,997 272,950 66,304 104,603 185,378
42,978 12,803 621 5739 12,168
589,326,587 555,513,581 391,328,398 199,687,015 170,148,759
26,997,199 18,915,515 3,718,488 4102,341 508,323
20,997,195 18,015,515 3,718,488 4,102,341 508,323
280,662,500 280,662,500 204,375,000 155,250,000 155,250,000
277,735,848 254,690,496 147,172,616 17,738,425 5532544
3,230,840 2,245,070 36,062,204 22,596,244 8,857,892
562,329,188 536,598,066 aB7.609,910 195,584,674 169,640,436
562,329,188 536,598,066 387,609,910 195,584,674 169,640,436
589,326,387 555,513,581 391,328,398 199,687,015 170,148,759
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 Junc 2015
N'ooo N'oao N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
15,674,813 18,119,950 46,762,865 2,429,751 2,230,508
504,020 163,065 - B N
8,083,019 (7.436,002) - - -
1,640,322 1,649,482 64,326,571 8,635,443 19,126
25,903,074 12,496,495 111,089,436 11,065,194 2,249,724
(555,820) (457,267) (266,014) {21B,006) (101,503)
(11.769) (6,068) (11,301}
{131,405) (51,002) (22,002) (50,445) (12,792)
(687,225) (508,259) (299,785} (275,419) (x25,596)
430,532 - - - .
25,640,381 11,988,206 110,789,651 10,789,775 2,124,538
i‘(nyy i} - s -
(1,610,726) (1,621,646) (894,638) {1,073,776) (785,753)
(1,610,726) (1,621,646) (894,638) {1,073,776} (785,753}
24,045,352 11,386,977 10;:__.8_95.0 Ly 0.71.-'.'\_9_99 ] 1,338,375
i g [214) (15,388) B
24,045,352 11,386,977 109,894,799 9,700,611 1,338,375
1,685,770 - & 1,783,335 18,127,759
1,685,770 - e 1,783,335 18,127,759
25,731,122 11,386,977 109,894,799 11,483,946 19,466,124




